
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
Daljit Lally, Chief Executive 

County Hall, Morpeth, Northumberland, NE61 2EF 
T: 0345 600 6400 

www.northumberland.gov.uk 
  

    
 

 Your ref:  
Our ref:  
Enquiries to: Lesley Little 
Email: lesley.little@northumberland.gov.uk 
Tel direct: 01670 622614 
Date: Monday, 29 November 2021 

 
 
Dear Sir or Madam, 

Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE to be 
held in MEETING SPACE - BLOCK 1, FLOOR 2 - COUNTY HALL on TUESDAY, 7 
DECEMBER 2021 at 4.00 PM.  

Yours faithfully 

 
Daljit Lally 
Chief Executive 
 

 

To Strategic Planning Committee members as follows:- 

C Ball, L Darwin, R Dodd, B Flux, J Foster, G Hill, JI Hutchinson, J Lang, J Reid, 
G Renner-Thompson, M Robinson (Vice-Chair), G Stewart, M Swinbank, T Thorne 
(Chair), A Wallace and A Watson 

Any member of the press or public may view the proceedings of this meeting live on our 
YouTube channel at https://www.youtube.com/NorthumberlandTV.  Members of the 
press and public may tweet, blog etc during the live broadcast as they would be able to 
during a regular Committee meeting. 

Members are referred to the risk assessment, previously circulated, for meetings held in 
County Hall. Masks should be worn when moving round but can be removed when 
seated, social distancing should be maintained, hand sanitiser regularly used and 
members requested to self-test twice a week at home, in line with government 
guidelines. 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/NorthumberlandTV


 
Strategic Planning Committee, 7 December 2021 

AGENDA 
 

PART I 
 

It is expected that the matters included in this part of the agenda 
will be dealt with in public. 

 
 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 

2.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 
The Minutes of the Strategic Planning Committee held on Tuesday 2 
November 2021, as circulated, to be confirmed as a true record and signed 
by the Chair.  
 

(Pages 1 
- 14) 

3.   PROCEDURE AT PLANNING COMMITTEES 
 

(Pages 
15 - 16) 

4.   DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS 
 
Unless already entered in the Council’s Register of Members’ interests, 
members are required to disclose any personal interest (which includes 
any disclosable pecuniary interest) they may have in any of the items 
included on the agenda for the meeting in accordance with the Code of 
Conduct adopted by the Council on 4 July 2012, and are reminded that if 
they have any personal interests of a prejudicial nature (as defined under 
paragraph 17 of the Code Conduct) they must not participate in any 
discussion or vote on the matter and must leave the room. NB Any 
member needing clarification must contact the monitoring officer by email 
at monitoringofficer@northumberland.gov.uk. Please refer to the guidance 
on disclosures at the rear of this agenda letter. 
 

 

5.   DETERMINATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS 
 
To request the committee to decide the planning applications attached to 
this report using the powers delegated to it.   
 
Please note that printed letters of objection/support are not circulated 
with the agenda but are available on the Council’s website at  
http://www.northumberland.gov.uk/Planning.aspx 
 

(Pages 
17 - 20) 

6.   20/01107/CCM 
EXTRACTION OF SANDSTONE. 
PRUDHAM QUARRY, NEWBROUGH, NORTHUMBERLAND 
 

(Pages 
21 - 58) 

7.   APPEALS UPDATE 
 
For Members’ information to report the progress of planning appeals.  This 
is a monthly report and relates to appeals throughout all 5 Local Area 
Council Planning Committee areas and covers appeals of Strategic 
Planning Committee. 
 

(Pages 
59 - 70) 

mailto:monitoringofficer@northumberland.gov.uk
http://www.northumberland.gov.uk/Planning.aspx


 
Strategic Planning Committee, 7 December 2021 

8.   URGENT BUSINESS 
 
To consider such business, as in the opinion of the Chair, should, by 
reason of special circumstances, be considered as a matter of urgency. 
 

 



 

Strategic Planning Committee, Tuesday, 7 December 2021 

IF YOU HAVE AN INTEREST AT THIS MEETING, PLEASE: 
  

● Declare it and give details of its nature before the matter is discussion or as soon as it 
becomes apparent to you. 

● Complete this sheet and pass it to the Democratic Services Officer.  

Name (please print):  

Meeting:  

Date:  

Item to which your interest relates:  

  

Nature of Registerable Personal Interest i.e either disclosable pecuniary interest (as 
defined by Annex 2 to Code of Conduct or other interest (as defined by Annex 3 to Code 
of Conduct) (please give details):  

  

  

 

 

 

Nature of Non-registerable Personal Interest (please give details): 

  
  
  
 
 
 
  

Are you intending to withdraw from the meeting? 

  

 
1. Registerable Personal Interests – You may have a Registerable Personal Interest if the 
issue being discussed in the meeting: 
  
a)     relates to any Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (as defined by Annex 1 to the Code of 
Conduct); or 



 
Strategic Planning Committee, 7 December 2021 

 b)   any other interest (as defined by Annex 2 to the Code of Conduct)  

The following interests are Disclosable Pecuniary Interests if they are an interest of either you 
or your spouse or civil partner:  
  
(1) Employment, Office, Companies, Profession or vocation; (2) Sponsorship; (3) Contracts 
with the Council; (4) Land in the County; (5) Licences in the County; (6) Corporate Tenancies 
with the Council; or (7) Securities -  interests in Companies trading with the Council.  
  
The following are other Registerable Personal Interests: 
  
(1) any body of which you are a member (or in a position of general control or management) to 
which you are appointed or nominated by the Council; (2) any body which  (i) exercises 
functions of a public nature or (ii) has charitable purposes or (iii) one of whose principal 
purpose includes the influence of public opinion or policy (including any political party or trade 
union) of which you are a member (or in a position of general control or management ); or (3) 
any person from whom you have received within the previous three years a gift or hospitality 
with an estimated value of more than £50 which is attributable to your position as an elected or 
co-opted member of the Council. 
  
2. Non-registerable personal interests - You may have a non-registerable personal interest 
when you attend a meeting of the Council or Cabinet, or one of their committees or sub-
committees, and you are, or ought reasonably to be, aware that a decision in relation to an 
item of business which is to be transacted might reasonably be regarded as affecting your well 
being or financial position, or the well being or financial position of a person described below to 
a greater extent than most inhabitants of the area affected by the decision. 

The persons referred to above are: (a) a member of your family; (b) any person with whom you 
have a close association; or (c) in relation to persons described in (a) and (b), their employer, 
any firm in which they are a partner, or company of which they are a director or shareholder. 

3. Non-participation in Council Business 

When you attend a meeting of the Council or Cabinet, or one of their committees or sub-
committees, and you are aware that the criteria set out below  are satisfied in relation to any 
matter to be considered, or being considered at that meeting, you must : (a) Declare that fact 
to the meeting; (b) Not participate (or further participate) in any discussion of the matter at the 
meeting; (c) Not participate in any vote (or further vote) taken on the matter at the meeting; 
and (d) Leave the room whilst the matter is being discussed. 

The criteria for the purposes of the above paragraph are that: (a) You have a registerable or 
non-registerable personal interest in the matter which is such that a member of the public 
knowing the relevant facts would reasonably think it so significant that it is likely to prejudice 
your judgement of the public interest; and either (b) the matter will affect the financial position 
of yourself or one of the persons or bodies referred to above or in any of your register entries; 
or (c) the matter concerns a request for any permission, licence, consent or registration sought 
by yourself or any of the persons referred to above or in any of your register entries. 

This guidance is not a complete statement of the rules on declaration of interests which 
are contained in the Members’ Code of Conduct.  If in any doubt, please consult the 
Monitoring Officer or relevant Democratic Services Officer before the meeting. 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Ch.’s Initials……… 

 
Strategic Planning Committee, Tuesday, 2 November 2021 1 

NORTHUMBERLAND COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
 
At the meeting of the Strategic Planning Committee held at Meeting Space - Block 1, 
Floor 2 - County Hall on Tuesday, 2 November 2021 at 3.00 pm. 
 

PRESENT 
 

T Thorne (Chair) (in the Chair) 
 
 

MEMBERS 
 

C Ball R Dodd 
B Flux J Foster 
G Hill JI Hutchinson 
J Lang M Robinson 
G Stewart M Swinbank 
A Wallace A Watson 

 
 

OTHER COUNCILLORS 
 

P Scott  
 

OFFICERS 
 

M Bulman Solicitor 
R Greally Assistant Democratic Services Officer 
G Halliday Consultant Planner 
L Little Senior Democratic Services Officer 
C Mead Highways Development Manager 
R Murfin Director of Planning 
J Murphy South East DM Area Manager 
G Park Environmental Health Officer 
M.Payne Consultant Engineer 

 
Around 7 members of the press and public were present. 
 
43 PROCEDURE AT PLANNING COMMITTEES 

 
The Chair outlined the procedure to be followed at the meeting. 
 
RESOLVED that the information be noted. 
 

44 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
 
Apologies were received from Councillors Darwin, Reid and Renner-Thompson.  
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Ch.’s Initials……… 

 
Strategic Planning Committee, Tuesday, 2 November 2021  2 

45 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meetings of the Strategic Planning 
Committee held on Tuesday 5 October2021, as circulated, were agreed as a true 
record and signed by the Chair. 
 

46 DETERMINATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS 
 
The report requested the Committee to decide the planning applications attached 
to the report using the powers delegated to it.  Members were reminded of the 
principles which should govern their consideration of the applications, the 
procedure for handling representations, the requirement of conditions and the 
need for justifiable reasons for the granting of permission or refusal of planning 
applications.  
 
The Chair highlighted the site visits which had been undertaken in respect of 
three of the applications on the agenda and thanked both Members and Officers 
for their attendance.  
 
RESOLVED that the information be noted. 
 

47 21/01944/FUL 
 
Construction of 18no. Starter Units  
Factory D , Ennerdale Road, Riverside Business Park, Blyth NE24 4RG  
 
J Murphy, Planning Area Manager - Development Management provided an 
introduction to the report with the aid of a power point presentation.  Updates 
were provided as follows:- 
 

• Paragraph 1.1 should refer to the Strategic Planning Committee and not the 
Castle Morpeth Local Area Council as stated. 

• Condition 12 refers to condition 9 and it should state condition 11. 
 
A Franklin, Hedley Planning Services addressed the Committee speaking in 
support of the application on behalf of the applicant.  His comments included the 
following: 
 

• The applicant had worked closely with the Council at every stage in order to 
deliver 18 high quality business units within a sustainable location which 
would create an additional 1,600 sqm of floorspace and an estimated 92 jobs 
for local people.  

• As evidenced, the proposed development made effective use of previously 
developed land within an established business park benefitting from existing 
infrastructure and provided suitable access to the shops and services which 
Blyth Centre had to offer.  

• The principle of construction 18 high quality units was acceptable within an 
allocated industrial estate and policies within the emerging Northumberland 
Local Plan (NLP) also supported proposals for economic growth especially in 
main towns such as Blyth.  

• The principle of development was considered acceptable with other material 
considerations having been assessed. The proposed units matched the 

Page 2



Ch.’s Initials……… 

 
Strategic Planning Committee, Tuesday, 2 November 2021  3 

building materials to that of adjacent units and would integrate with its 
surroundings. The design and scale of each unit was considered appropriate 
for the end commercial use. 

• There had been public comments with regard to highway safety, in particular 
the internal road network within the business park. The proposal would create 
a new site entrance off Coniston Road along the eastern edge of the 
proposed site and detailed consideration had been given towards the design 
of a functional highways access which would be safe for all users. The 
applicant had worked in co-operation with the Council to evidence these 
measures within the Transport Statement submitted in support of the 
application. 

•  An additional road safety assessment had been undertaken to determine the 
safety of the access point in relation to the adjacent road network and had 
been assessed by an independent party.  

• The detailed plans and assessments concluded that a safe and suitable site 
access had been achieved off Coniston Road which would not adversely 
impact the adjacent road network.  Therefore the comments regarding road 
safety had been resolved following collaboration between the applicant and 
the Council’s Highways Team. 

• The Officer’s recommendation was welcomed and the Committee were 
requested to endorse this recommendation and grant planning permission.  

 
In response to questions from Members of the Committee the following 
information was provided:- 
 

• The site was not complex and was allocated for business use.  Additional 
assessments and scrutiny had been undertaken due to concerns of highway 
safety following the history of the road with a fatal collision occurring. For this 
reason a Highway Safety Audit had been undertaken prior to the scheme 
being recommended for approval, which was beyond what would normally be 
required.  The independent Road Safety Audit had not found anything unsafe 
and the visibility at the proposed access met technical specifications.   

• The proposed units could be used for a number of businesses uses including 
storage or office space. 

• There were no plans by the Local Authority to change the existing or provide 
additional road signage.    

• The Road Safety Audit had looked at the totality of the road network including 
signage and speed limits and had concluded that the fatal accident was not 
connected to the road layout and had not recommended any interventions.   

• Monitoring of the road network would not form part of one development, 
however it would be looked at as a matter of course over time. 

 
Councillor Dodd proposed that the application be granted in line with the Officer’s 
recommendation with the amended condition 9 as outlined above, which was 
seconded by Councillor Stewart.  
 
It was highlighted that there were two 90º bends on the road in close proximity 
and that cars should not be travelling in excess of 30 mph in that location.  In 
respect of the safety of users of the centre for adults with learning disabilities it 
was confirmed that the centre had barriers to gain entrance to/from the site with 
all doors locked and all service users escorted on and off the site.  There had in 

Page 3



Ch.’s Initials……… 

 
Strategic Planning Committee, Tuesday, 2 November 2021  4 

the past been larger factories in the area with a large number of HGV vehicles 
servicing these and there was now less traffic than had previously been the case.  
 
A vote was taken on the proposal to grant permission in line with the Officer’s 
report with the amendment to Condition 9 as outlined and it was unanimously: 
 
RESOLVED that the application be GRANTED for the reasons and subject to the 
conditions as outlined in the report and amended Condition 9. 
 

48 21/01106/CCD 
 
Construction of a two-platform railway station including: ramped pedestrian 
access, new highway access; modifications to existing highways including 
pedestrian footways; provision of parking for cars, electric vehicles, 
motorcycles, cycles, and taxis and other associated works. Construction of 
facilities ancillary to the station including, lighting, soft and hard 
landscaping, surface and subsurface drainage, utilities and other services, 
boundary treatment and other associated works  
Bedlington Railway Station, Station Street, Bedlington, Northumberland  
NE22 5UZ 
 
G. Halliday, Consultant Planner provided an introduction to the report with the aid 
of a power point presentation which included visualisations of the proposed 
development.  Updates were provided as follows: 
 

• East Bedlington Parish Council had now advised that they were in support of 
the application. 

• A letter had been received from Mr Orr, Consultant for Ward Hadaway who 
were acting on behalf of Bernicia Group in their objection to the application.  
The letter set out comments relating to noise impacts and requesting that any 
decision should be deferred until the severity and cumulative impacts had 
been assessed in detail and all appropriate information had been put before 
the Committee.  They further suggested that if Members were minded to 
approve the application a further three conditions be imposed on any 
permission granted.  A full copy of the letter was available on the planning 
portal. 

 
Members were advised that a Main Contractor had only just been appointed and 
if permission was granted they would be building six stations and other 
associated works with the detailed programming of the various works still to be 
decided.  The information that was known at the current time had been included 
in the Committee Report and whilst this was not complete it was the best that was 
available.  The main issue was the proximity to Sleekburn House and whilst there 
would be some impact during the construction and operational phases proposals 
to mitigate these were the subject of conditions and these were appropriate to use 
with the final detail to be provided at a later date.  It was not wrong to make a 
decision based on the information provided. 
 
Councillor J Foster joined the meeting at 3.45 pm and did not take any part on 
deciding this application.   
 

Page 4



Ch.’s Initials……… 

 
Strategic Planning Committee, Tuesday, 2 November 2021  5 

F Orr, Consultant for Ward Hadaway addressed the Committee speaking in 
objection to the application.  His comments included the following: 
 

• Members would be aware of the very familiar social landlord role that Bernicia 
had and of the very good working relationship it had with the Council which  
was valued. It shared the same desire to bring the best to the County and its 
people and both Bernicia and the Local Authority had a responsibility to their 
residents.   

• Bernicia objected to the application in respect of the interests of its residents 
which it felt would “fall between the cracks of the planning position and the 
Transport and Works Order”. They asked that Members took time to consider 
the needs of the 29 residents of Sleekburn House, the majority of which were 
over 75 years of age with the oldest being 93. Many of the residents were in 
poor health, were disabled or had some learning disability, 5 were 
housebound and over half of the residents had care packages in place.   

• At the closest point Sleekburn House was only 3.25m from the proposed 
station with some residents spending most of their time in living rooms.  
Currently there were only a limited number of passing freight trains which did 
not stop and had limited effect on residents amenity which would be a stark 
contrast during both during the construction and operation of the new station 
which would have a severe and damaging effect on amenity and their health. 

• There was insufficient detailed information on the programme of works, 
however it was known that there would be an 18 month programme of regular 
non stop work over a 79 hour period over weekends from Thursday evenings 
to Monday mornings.  This would have a significant effect and render 
Sleekburn House uninhabitable during that period with the closest working 
area just 1.55m from residents’ windows.   

• He requested that the consideration of the application be delayed until more 
detail and the effects of the construction phase were known, or a model form 
of condition was used to establish noise limits which must not be exceeded. 

• Noise consultants had undertaken additional measurements and following 
this suggested draft conditions which had been submitted to the Council 
today which required mitigation at Sleekburn House to achieve appropriate 
noise levels or the relocation of residents during the construction process. 

• During the operation there would be 62 new stops at the station and together 
with the operation of the level crossing this would have a significant effect on 
residents. 

• The impact of the PA system, which needed to be louder than background 
noise would be like having the PA announcements amplified directly outside 
residents’ windows every 5 minutes of the waking day. 

• Residents’ living conditions would be adversely affected as at present they 
looked out over soft landscaping and instead they would be looking out to a 
3.5m high fence and would have over 200 PA announcements and 330 noise 
events in total each day. Residents in other locations similar to this had 
described it as psychological torture and of having to spend their lives behind 
closed windows which was not acceptable.  

• He asked that the application be deferred until the mitigation was known or 
planning conditions to achieve specific noise levels on both the construction 
and operational phases were included. 

 
A Healey, Planning consultant, addressed the Committee speaking in support of 
the application on behalf of the applicant.  Her comments included the following: 

Page 5



Ch.’s Initials……… 

 
Strategic Planning Committee, Tuesday, 2 November 2021  6 

 

• The proposed station at Bedlington was one of six new stations proposed as 
part of plans to reintroduce passenger services between Newcastle and 
Ashington. It was envisaged that there would be a half-hourly service with an 
anticipated journey time of 35 minutes between Ashington and Newcastle. 

• The application before the Committee had been the subject of extensive 
consultations both before and after the planning submission. The proposals 
had also been the subject of a significant public consultation exercise where 
several hundred people wrote to support the overall scheme, with 128 
representations specifically supporting the proposals at Bedlington.  

• The applicant had listened to the concerns raised by residents and had 
sought to identify alternative sites which were appropriate to provide for 
anticipated car parking demand. This culminated in the withdrawal of the site 
on Ravensworth Street and the submission of a separate application for a car 
park on Liddle’s Street which was also being considered at today’s 
Committee. 

• The applicant acknowledged the concerns raised by objectors related to noise 
and other residential amenity impacts and had worked with the local planning 
authority to agree appropriate conditions to ensure appropriate mitigation 
measures were implemented.  The applicant was working with 
representatives of Bernicia to provide assurances that the project would work 
with them as part of the schemes to discharge those conditions.  The report 
confirmed that the proposed mitigation measures were considered 
appropriate by Public Protection, subject to the imposition of appropriately 
worded conditions. 

• The submitted scheme was the only scheme technically possible to deliver a 
railway station at this location. The information submitted confirmed this to be 
the case and had been acknowledged by officers. 

• The submitted documents provided a robust case which demonstrated the 
application was in accordance with relevant planning policies, with the 
Transport Assessment including information on passenger demand.  

• Officers had accepted the modelling basis for the car park demand and were 
content to recommend approval, subject to conditions. 

• The station and wider scheme would deliver the transport infrastructure 
required to attract inward investment, create additional employment 
opportunities, enhance economic vitality and encourage further economic 
growth in Bedlington Station, Bedlington and South East Northumberland. 
The proposed new station, adjacent to the site of the original railway station, 
respected the local townscape and historical importance of the line’s industrial 
heritage. 

• Policies within both the Wansbeck Local Plan and emerging NLP identified 
Bedlington Station as a safeguarded location for a future railway station. The 
station was sustainable development which both national and local planning 
policies confirm should be supported.  There were no objections from 
statutory consultees and when balancing the objections made to the 
application against the significant economic, social and environmental 
benefits of the scheme, we believe the application ought to be approved.  

• The application had been thoroughly assessed and found to be in accordance 
with the relevant planning policies and there were no material considerations 
to indicate permission should not be granted subject to the conditions set out 
in the Officer’s report. 

 

Page 6



Ch.’s Initials……… 

 
Strategic Planning Committee, Tuesday, 2 November 2021  7 

In response to questions from Members of the Committee the following 
information was noted: 
 

• It was proposed that the taxi drop off point would be the northern end of the 
Park Terrace car park which would give direct access to the northern ramp of 
the southbound platform. 

• A survey undertaken in respect of the existing car parks had shown that they 
were usually at 80% occupancy and it would be necessary for  additional car 
parking to be provided. The 67 spaces proposed had been modelled close to 
the maximum modelling requirement undertaken and had been agreed by 
Highways. 

• The approach to making a planning decision was to look to see if the location 
was the correct one for the proposed development.  Consultees, including 
Public Protection had accepted, in principle, that this was an acceptable 
location for a railway station.  In respect of the concern raised by the speaker 
on the lack of how the works would be undertaken, it was accepted that not 
all details were available, however it was usual to attach conditions for a 
Construction Management Plan and Noise Management Plan to be submitted 
and agreed as part of the discharge of conditions.   The public speaker had 
requested that noise limits be set, however Officers advised that Members 
look at this as part of the reserved matters when limits could be imposed 
which would be based on evidence.  A PA system was required to be 
provided and would also be the subject of reserved matters and would allow 
different ways of utilising equipment to be considered as part of a detailed 
scheme.  

• Any relocation of residents from Sleekburn House during the construction 
phase would be a matter for the applicant to consider with Bernicia and was 
not for discussion as part of the planning decision.   

• During the construction phase it would be necessary for the boundary of the 
site to be 1.55m away from Sleekburn House in order to construct the 
platform, however afterwards the distance would be approximately 4.5m – 5m 
away.  As much detail as possible had been sought and the information given 
was all that the applicant was able to provide at the current time.  The 79 
hours of construction time over the weekend was to allow freight trains to 
continue to use the rail line.  The applicant had advised that work would not 
take place every weekend or for all 79 hours and when works were being 
undertaken a shift pattern would be in operation. 

• The provision of bollards on the section outside the station in the location of 
the pedestrian crossing could be considered as part of the Section 278 
agreement. 

• Consultation had been undertaken with households and it was not thought 
that the school had been consulted. 

• If Members were minded to support the application, it was clarified that all car 
parks associated with the Northumberland Line would have car park 
management plans and if it became clear that there were issues with 
displacement onto local roads then there would be the potential to look at 
introducing residents only schemes. 

• Detailed investigation work had been undertaken in respect of the positioning 
of the station and a major constraint had been the forking of the railway line 
and the safety considerations of this.  Alternatives had been discounted due 
to operational and safety issues prior to submission. Members were reminded 
they needed to consider the merits of the scheme which was in front of them 

Page 7



Ch.’s Initials……… 

 
Strategic Planning Committee, Tuesday, 2 November 2021  8 

and if they thought it was wrong and this could be evidenced then they would 
need to refuse the application.  It had been an exhaustive process with a lot 
of public consultation being undertaken and the application had come forward 
at the end of the process and not at the beginning. 

• The business case put forward to Government for financial support for the 
whole Northumberland Line was based on the economic benefit for the area 
and was the justification for the entire case and this was the reason it had 
been supported. 

• Modelling of the parking provision had been based on free parking. The 
commitment from Cabinet had been that the parking would be initially free 
and then this would be reviewed.  No assumption could be made on the 
results of the review. Prior to any changes in strategy, details of clear 
mitigation would be required including how to handle displacement if charges 
for parking were introduced in order to protect residential amenity and this 
was covered by a planning condition. 

• Assessments had been undertaken at all level crossing points by both 
Network Rail and Highways with the Bedlington South crossing to be 
upgraded and the footway widened as much as possible with new barriers 
installed to ensure the safety of pedestrians. 

• Bernicia were requesting that the application be deferred until the scheme 
could be properly worked out or to use the conditions that they were 
suggesting.  Officers advised against the use of these as it might be wished to 
use more or less onerous ones as part of the construction management plan 
which would be secured by a condition.  The principle had been looked at by 
Public Protection who had no objections subject to conditions as outlined in 
the report.   Attention was drawn to the well-used conditions 28, 29, 30, 31 
and 32 which would be attached to any permission granted and addressed 
the concerns of the public speaker.   The construction management plan 
would normally be agreed at officer level, however assurance was provided 
by the Interim Executive Director of Planning & Local Services that details of 
the construction management plan and schemes within the aforementioned 
conditions would also be discussed with the Chair and Vice-Chair in order to 
ensure that the concerns expressed by Members had been adequately 
addressed.  

 
Councillor Wallace advised that he had listened to the questions and answers 
provided, attended the site visit and had listened to residents, and wished to 
propose acceptance of the recommendation to approve the application subject to 
the conditions as outlined in the Officer’s report.   This was seconded by 
Councillor Dodd. 
 
During debate, Members in the most part supported and welcomed the 
application and the benefits the opening of the line for passengers would bring.  
Councillor Ball advised that whilst she supported the opening of the line did not 
feel that this station was in the right place and as there were a number of issues 
still to be addressed would have preferred to have deferred consideration of the 
application. 
 
In summing up, Councillor Wallace advised that Bernicia had not raised their 
concerns with East Bedlington Parish Council, who would have taken them 
forward and he made a plea that the car parking remained free for the lifetime of 
the station. 

Page 8



Ch.’s Initials……… 

 
Strategic Planning Committee, Tuesday, 2 November 2021  9 

 
A vote was taken on the motion to approve the application as outlined in the 
report as follows:- FOR 11; AGAINST 1; ABSTENSION 0. 
 
RESOLVED that the application be GRANTED for the reasons and with the 
conditions as outlined in the report. 
 
A short recess was held at this point.  
 

49 21/03060/CCD 
 
Construction of parking for cars, electric vehicles, and other associated 
works. Modifications to existing highways including pedestrian footways 
and new highways access. 
Land North of 6 Liddle’s Street, Ravensworth Street, Bedlington, 
Northumberland 
 
G Halliday, Planning Consultant provided an introduction to the report with the aid 
of a power point presentation.  He advised that a late observation had been 
received from East Bedlington Parish Council which stated that they supported 
the application and would welcome additional electric vehicle charging points if 
possible.  Members were advised that 10% of the total number of spaces were 
utilised for electric vehicle charging points which was over the 6% which was 
normally requested. 
 
In response to questions from Members of the Committee the following 
information was provided:- 
 

• In response to comments made by Councillor Foster in relation to the parking 
of cars and the existing only for access sign being ignored, it was confirmed 
that a condition was imposed which could look at the introduction of parking 
restrictions on Ravensworth Street and as the signage was also to be looked 
at then the only for access sign would be repositioned with better sight lines.  

• The loose surface outside the commercial premises did not form part of the 
public highway, however it was within the red line application boundary and if 
required then it could be looked at securing the resurfacing of this as part of a 
condition. 

• Condition  17 advised that if any change in the charging strategy were 
proposed then details of mitigation would need to be provided and approved 
by the Local Planning Authority. 

• The current speed limit on Ravensworth Street was 30 mph. If an access had 
the correct width and visibility splays in both directions then increased levels 
of traffic would not make the junction unsafe.  If there was a need to ensure 
that the junction was kept clear then this could be secured through a 
condition. 

 
Councillor Foster proposed acceptance of the recommendation to approve the 
application which was seconded by Councillor Flux.  
 
In response to road safety concerns, Councillor Wallace highlighted that there 
was a speed unit which had been put in by a joint initiative by ex-Councillors 

Page 9



Ch.’s Initials……… 

 
Strategic Planning Committee, Tuesday, 2 November 2021  10 

Gobin and Crosby in response to a fatal accident in another part of Bedlington.  
He advised that the site had previously housed over 100 HGV vehicles. 
 
A vote was taken on the proposal to approve the application in line with the 
recommendation in the report and it was unanimously: 
 
RESOLVED that the application be GRANTED for the reasons and subject to the 
conditions as outlined in the report. 
 

50 SUSPENSION OF STANDING ORDERS 
 
During consideration of the following item as the time approached 5.00 pm and to 
allow the meeting to continue it was : 
 
RESOLVED that Members agreed to the suspension of Standing Orders to allow 
the meeting to continue after the 3 hour limit. 
 

51 21/02253/CCD 
 
Construction of a new single platform railway station including new 
highway access and signalised junction; modifications to existing highways 
including pedestrian footways; provision of parking for cars, electric 
vehicles, motorcycles, cycles, and taxis; works to public rights of way. 
Construction of: facilities ancillary to the station including, lighting, soft 
and hard landscaping, surface and subsurface drainage, utilities and other 
services, boundary treatment and other associated works. 
 
G Halliday introduced the report with the aid of a power point presentation.  An 
addendum report had been circulated in advance of the meeting and had been 
uploaded to the Council’s website which provided details of amendments and 
additional conditions to be attached to any permission granted.  He also advised 
that two further emails had been received from Mr R Billinghurst regarding the 
proposed layout of the car park and omissions from the officer report which had 
also been circulated to Members of the Committee in advance.  Paper copies of 
both were also made available at the Committee.   
 
D Moy addressed the Committee speaking on behalf of residents of Whytrigg 
Close in objection to the application.  His comments included the following: 
 

• Residents were not opposed to the opening of the rail line or the proposed car 
park but wished to see changes to its proposed layout and size which they 
considered would improve the impact of the proposals without any detriment 
to its users. 

• The current proposals would have a major impact on the lives of residents 
and they were entitled to further consideration. The current proposals would 
increase antisocial behaviour and the residents proposals would minimise 
problems. 

• The layout of the car park forced all cars to pass close to their properties 
unnecessarily on the outer road which would encourage speeding. There was 
already a problem with anti-social behaviour and the Police had challenged 
the application stating that antisocial behaviour should be designed out at the 
design stage.  

Page 10



Ch.’s Initials……… 

 
Strategic Planning Committee, Tuesday, 2 November 2021  11 

• The solution would be to change the traffic flow and route it away from the 
back of their houses.  Virtual meetings had been held with the local MP and 
all present had agreed that the direction of travel should be changed to 
alleviate the serious issues but NCC had not taken notice of this.  A direction 
change to the platform would also reduce antisocial behaviour and break up 
traffic flow and these changes were easy wins. 

• NCC had not demonstrated in the design modelling analysis could be 
defended from serious criticism.  A large proportion of residents to the south 
of Seaton Delaval would use the metro rather than travel and use the Seaton 
Delaval station.  SENRUG had also confirmed this in a report which had been 
prepared many years ago. 

• The long term effects of the Pandemic had been ignored and the reduction in 
the use of public transport due to changes in working practices such as more 
working from home had not been taken into consideration. 

• It had not been fully explained why there had been a 211% increase in the 
number of spaces since 2019/2020.  Phasing of the construction of the car 
park would allow for the uncertainty of numbers of bays required over the next 
few years.  This would also have the benefit of saving unnecessary costs; 
avoid the use of Green Belt land and reduce the damage to the environment; 
reduce the impact on residents and would benefit everyone in the surrounding 
area.  If additional capacity was required the car park could be extended or it 
could be that a station could be built at Seghill. 

• They opposed the use of tarmac on the Green Belt and the destruction of the 
biodiversity of the site. 

• The long straight space used for access would be to the detriment of the 
residents of Whytrigg Close and the reversal of the flow of traffic and 
providing the access road inside would provide more space closer to the 
station. 

 
P Scott, Local Ward Member addressed the Committee.  He advised that he 
supported the application which would bring the reintroduction of passenger trains 
following their removal in 1964.  The service would allow residents to travel to 
Newcastle in less than 20 minutes or connect to the metro. The benefits of the 
proposals were clear and he recommended that the application should be 
granted, however there were valid concerns which needed to be addressed 
regarding the car park, the details of which had been provided by Mr Moy in his 
speech.  He stressed that the concerns were from a group of residents who were 
in support of the station but believed the car park should be looked at again.  He 
agreed with this position and if Members were minded to agree the application 
then a reserved matters condition could be added linked to the provision of the 
car park, this would allow more work to be undertaken before a final scheme was 
agreed including the possibility of moving the access road to the middle of the car 
park which would remove traffic from behind the properties and prevent it running 
close to the station platform itself. 
 
P Gillon, Chartered Planner addressed the Committee speaking on behalf of the 
applicant in support of the application.  His comments included the following:- 
 

• The station was one of six proposed as part of plans to reintroduce passenger 
services between Newcastle and Ashington. 

• The application had been the subject of extensive consultations with officers 
and other stakeholders both before and after the planning submission. 

Page 11



Ch.’s Initials……… 

 
Strategic Planning Committee, Tuesday, 2 November 2021  12 

• The application had also been the subject of a significant public consultation 
exercise with over 139 respondents specifically supporting the proposals at 
Seaton Delaval.  Such support confirmed there was a significant public 
interest in the development of a new railway station at Seaton Delaval.  

• Following consultation in December 2020, changes to the scheme were made 
to respond to those concerns raised by residents and included increasing the 
area of planting and screening between residential properties and the 
proposed access road; re-aligning the access road to minimise the straight 
sections of road to address concerns this would encourage speeding; and re-
aligning the pedestrian access to the east away from the property boundary.  

• Work had continued with Officers and other stakeholders to address concerns 
wherever possible during the determination of the application, culminating in 
this scheme.  The application and the submitted documents provided a robust 
case which demonstrated the application was in accordance with all relevant 
and national and local planning policies. 

• The proposed railway station would deliver significant economic, social and 
environmental benefits, precise details of which could be found within the 
planning application submission. 

• The submitted Transport Assessment and the passenger demand modelling 
which underpinned that assessment had informed the design of the scheme 
and was support by Highways Officers. 

• The station and wider scheme would deliver the transport infrastructure which 
was required to attract inward investment, create additional employment 
opportunities and encourage further economic growth in Seaton Delaval and 
the South East of Northumberland.   

• Policies within both the adopted Blyth Valley Local Plan and Core Strategy 
and the emerging NLP identified Seaton Delaval as a safeguarded location 
for a future railway station.  

• The station was a sustainable development which policies confirm should be 
supported and there were no objections from Statutory Consultees and when 
balanced against the objections the significant economic, social and 
environmental benefits, the scheme should be approved. 

• The application had been thoroughly assessed and had been found to be in 
accordance with the relevant planning policies and he respectfully urged 
Members to accept the Officer’s recommendation to approve the application.  

 
In response to questions from Members of the Committee the following 
information was provided:- 
 

• There was a condition related to the management of the car park and Mr 
Halliday had set out the logic of the proposed layout.  There were some 
physical issues in relation to the design and circulation of traffic in the car 
park which needed to be taken into consideration such as to avoid cars 
passing in large numbers between where people were parking and walking to 
the station, for safety reasons. Some fine tuning of the operation of the car 
park could be undertaken as part of the management strategy however it 
would not be possible to change the total layout of the car park at this stage 
without deferring the application and if a changed layout went outside the red 
line boundary then a whole new planning application would be required.  
There were a number of conditions to be attached to any permission granted 
and when these were read as a whole with the report, such as those which 
required a detailed landscape plan, which it was thought could address some 

Page 12



Ch.’s Initials……… 

 
Strategic Planning Committee, Tuesday, 2 November 2021  13 

of the concerns of the residents.  There had been a need to balance issues 
such as noise, ecology, lighting, constraints of the site and if any changes 
were proposed then there would be a need to go back to all consultees.  A lot 
of work had been undertaken to satisfy conditions and the application before 
Members provided the best balance of the requirements of other consultees. 

• Work could be undertaken as part of the landscaping scheme to be submitted 
to look at the type of screen planting taking into account all angles and the 
openness of the area and the distance between the properties and the car 
park.  

• There would be a light traffic controlled access to the car park and extensive 
modelling to show capacity and the safety improvements which would be 
required had been undertaken.  

• There was to be some modest landscaping and SUDs areas incorporated into 
the car park to break up the visual impact and would also provide a drainage 
function, however it had been made clear by any operator of the car park that 
due to maintenance issues, it should not be shrub planting and was likely that 
any planting would be low level. 

• There was an active policy to promote the use of sustainable transport and in 
this instance the level of car parking provision was appropriate as, whilst it 
encouraged the use of cars, it would result in shorter car journeys with 
residents parking at the station and then travelling the rest of their journey by 
train.  If the number of spaces were reduced then there was the risk of people 
being put off using the rail line or displacing parking into neighbouring 
residential areas. Any phasing of the use of the car park could be proposed 
as part of the management plan.   

• An RAC Foundation report had advised that between July and September 
2021, the levels of traffic within urban centres had returned to pre-covid levels 
with people doing less walking/cycling than they had during lockdown.   

• Neighbouring housing estates could be used by cyclists to access the station. 

• There were no buildings to be provided at any of the stations only some wet 
weather protection.  

 
Councillor Hutchinson proposed acceptance of the recommendation to approve 
the application subject to the conditions as outlined in the report and additions 
and amendments contained in the addendum report which was seconded by 
Councillor Flux. 
 
Members considered that the points raised in Mr Billinghurst’s email had been 
addressed in the report.  It was suggested that details of the car park 
management plan and the landscaping plan could be agreed with the Chair to 
ensure that the final schemes reflected the concerns of the Members.  Councillors 
Hutchinson and Flux advised that they would be happy for this to be added to the 
proposal to approve the application.  A vote was taken on the proposal to approve 
the application as outlined and it was unanimously 
 
RESOLVED that the application be GRANTED for the reasons and with the 
conditions in the report and amendments and additional conditions outlined in the 
addendum report with the Car Park Management Plan and Landscaping Plan to 
be agreed by the Chair of the Strategic Planning Committee. 
 

52 APPEALS UPDATE 
 

Page 13



Ch.’s Initials……… 

 
Strategic Planning Committee, Tuesday, 2 November 2021  14 

RESOLVED that the information be noted. 
 
 

53 S106 AGREEMENTS UPDATE REPORT 
 
RESOLVED that the information be noted. 
 
 

 

 

 CHAIR…………………………………….. 
 

        DATE………………………………………. 

Page 14



 

 

 

 

 

PROCEDURE AT PLANNING COMMITTEE  

 

 

               A  Welcome from Chairman to members and those members of the public watching on the 

livestream  

Welcome to also include reference to  

(i) Fact that meeting is being held in a Covid safe environment and 

available to view on a live stream through You Tube 

Northumberland TV  

(ii) Members are asked to keep microphones on mute unless speaking   

 

B  Record attendance of members  

(i)  Democratic Services Officer (DSO) to announce and record any apologies 

received.  

 C Minutes of previous meeting and Disclosure of Members’ Interests 

 D Development Control  

                                            APPLICATION  

Chair 

Introduces application  

Site Visit Video (previously circulated) - invite members questions 

          Planning Officer  

Updates – Changes to recommendations – present report  

 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 3



Public Speaking 

        Objector(s) (up to 5 mins)  

  Local member (up to 5 mins)/ parish councillor (up to 5 mins) 

       Applicant/Supporter (up to 5 mins)  

      NO QUESTIONS IN RELATION TO WRITTEN REPRESENTATIONS OR OF/BY LOCAL COUNCILLOR  

Committee members’ questions to Planning Officers  

Chairman to respond to raised hands of members as to whether they have any questions of the 

Planning Officers  

Debate (Rules)  

                                                              Proposal  

   Seconded  

    DEBATE  

Again Chairman to respond to raised hand of members as to whether they wish to 

participate in the debate  

● No speeches until proposal seconded  

● Speech may not exceed 6 minutes  

● Amendments to Motions  

● Approve/Refuse/Defer  

 

Vote(by majority or Chair’s casting vote) 

 

(i) Planning Officer confirms and reads out wording of resolution 

(ii) Legal officer should then record the vote  FOR/AGAINST/ABSTAIN (reminding 

members that they should abstain where they have not heard all of the consideration 

of the application)  

              

  

Page 16



  

STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE  

DATE: 7 DECEMBER 2021  

 

DETERMINATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS 

Report of the Interim Executive Director of Planning and Local Services 

Cabinet Member:  Councillor C Horncastle 

 

Purpose of report 

To request the Strategic Planning Committee to decide the planning applications attached 
to this report using the powers delegated to it. 
 

Recommendations 

The Strategic Planning Committee is recommended to consider the attached planning 
applications and decide them in accordance with the individual recommendations, also 
taking into account the advice contained in the covering report. 

 
Key issues 

Each application has its own particular set of individual issues and considerations that 
must be taken into account when determining the application.  These are set out in the 
individual reports contained in the next section of this agenda. 
 
 
Author and Contact Details 

 
Report author: Rob Murfin 
Interim Executive Director of Planning and Local Services 
 01670 622542 
 Rob.Murfin@northumberland.gov.uk   

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



 
DETERMINATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS 

  
Introduction 

 
1. The following section of the agenda consists of planning applications to be 
determined by the Strategic Planning Committee in accordance with the current 
delegation arrangements. Any further information, observations or letters relating to 
any of the applications contained in this agenda and received after the date of 
publication of this report will be reported at the meeting. 
 
The Determination of Planning and Other Applications 

 
2. In considering the planning and other applications, members are advised to take 
into account the following general principles: 

 
● Decision makers are to have regard to the development plan, so far as it is 

material to the application 
 

● Applications are to be determined in accordance with the development plan 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise 

 
● Applications should always be determined on their planning merits in the light of 

all material considerations 
 

● Members are reminded that recommendations in favour of giving permission must 
be accompanied by suitable conditions and a justification for giving permission, 
and that refusals of permission must be supported by clear planning reasons both 
of which are defensible on appeal 

 
● Where the Strategic Planning Committee is minded to determine an application 

other than in accordance with the Officer’s recommendation, clear reasons should 
be given that can be minuted, and appropriate conditions or refusal reasons put 
forward 

 
3. Planning conditions must meet the tests that are set down in paragraph 56 of the 
NPPF and meet the tests set out in Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010. 
Conditions must be: 
   

a.  necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; 
b. directly related to the development; and 
c. fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.  

 
4. Where councillors are contemplating moving a decision contrary to officer advice, 

they are recommended to consider seeking advice from senior officers as to what 
constitute material planning considerations, and as to what might be appropriate 
conditions or reasons for refusal. 

  

Page 18



Important Copyright Notice 
 
5. The maps used are reproduced from the Ordnance Survey maps with the permission 

of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery office, Crown Copyright reserved.   
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
These are listed at the end of the individual application reports. 

Implications 

Policy Procedures and individual recommendations are in line with 
policy unless otherwise stated 

Finance and 
value for 
money 

None unless stated 

Legal None unless stated  

Procurement None 

Human 
Resources 

None 

Property None 

Equalities 

(Impact 

Assessment 

attached) 

Yes ☐  No ☐   

N/A       ☐ 

Planning applications are considered having regard to the 
Equality Act 2010 

Risk 
Assessment 

None 

Crime & 
Disorder 

As set out in the individual reports 

Customer 
Consideratio
n 

None 

Carbon 
reduction 

Each application will have an impact on the local environment 
and it has been assessed accordingly 

Wards All 

 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



  
 

 
 

 

 
Strategic Planning Committee, 7 December 2021  

 
Application No: 20/01107/CCM 

Proposal: Extraction of sandstone. 

Site Address Prudham Quarry, Newbrough, Northumberland,  

Applicant: Mr Robert Charlton 
Kirkholme,  
Lanty's Lonen,  
Haltwhistle, 
Northumberland 
NE49 0HQ 

Agent: Mrs Katie Wood 
1 Meadowfield Court, 
Meadowfield Industrial Estate, 
Ponteland,  
Newcastle Upon Tyne 
NE20 9SD 

Ward Humshaugh Parish Warden 

Valid Date: 6 April 2020 Expiry 
Date: 

31 December 2021 

Case Officer 
Details: 

Name:  Mr Gordon Halliday 

Job Title:  Consultant Planner 

Tel No:  01670 622163 

Email: gordon.halliday@northumberland.gov.uk 

 
Recommendation: That this application be GRANTED permission subject to the 
Secretary of State not wishing to call in the application for their determination. 
 

 

 
This material has been reproduced from Ordnance Survey digital map data with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © Crown 
Copyright (Not to Scale) 

 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



1. Introduction 
 

 1.1 Under the terms of the current Scheme of Delegation, this planning application 
  is to be determined by the Strategic Planning Committee as it is a County  
  Matter (minerals) development proposal that has received significant public 
  interest.  
 
 1.2 Members will recall that the Committee refused a similar application in May 
  2019. Further details are provided in Section 4 below. 
 
 2. The Application Site and Surrounding Area 
 
 2.1 Prudham Quarry (historically known as Prudhamstone Quarry) is a former  
  sandstone quarry located 900m northwest of the village of Fourstones, 1.2km 
  northeast of Newbrough and 7km northwest of Hexham, on the north side of 
  the South Tyne valley. The former Fourstones Quarry that produced limestone is 
  located to the south east of Prudhamstone Quarry. The nearest residential 
  properties to the extraction area include Prudhamstone Cottage and  
  Prudhamstone House, about 130  metres and 170 metres respectively to the 
  west, Frankham Fells Boarding Kennels about 350 metres to the north east, and 
  several properties about 300 metres to 400 metres to the south and south west 
  including The Old Gardens and Woodlands. 
 

2.2 The quarry was worked between about 1830 and 1914. It was a large quarrying 
  operation that included steam driven cranes and a quarry tramway to extract 
  and export sandstone towards the adjacent Fourstones Quarry and then south 
  along a mineral tramway to the limeworks at Fourstones Station for onwards 
  transport.  Subsequently it was worked on an intermittent business with the last 
  known mineral extraction believed to be in the 1970s and early 1980s.   
 

2.3 The Prudham Quarry site retains many features of previous mineral exploitation 
  including waste dumps of various sizes, crane bases and lengths of retaining 
  walls and revetments. A long embankment, formerly a tramway, runs east – 
  west across the site and is now the access road to Prudhamstone House. A 
  former quarry void has become a waterbody known locally as the ‘Blue Lagoon
  The quarry face runs for 400 - 500 metres northeast to southwest and is exposed 
  in places showing a 15 - 20 metre high face, set into which is a variety of shot 
  holes tool marks, blast features and iron bars.  
 

2.4 The quarry site is now mixed plantation woodland mainly of Norway Spruce 
  with some Scots Pine around the application site. Much of the plantation has 
  matured and recent forestry management operations are evident. The ground 
  flora is an acidic heath mix, including heather, foxglove and bramble. Extensive 
  areas of the woodland are rock and spoil heaps discarded from the former 
  quarry workings and allowed to naturally revegatate. The former quarry   
  extended further to the east beyond the woodland where it was subsequently 
  used for the disposal of household waste – the former Frankham landfill site.
     

3. Description of the proposal 
 

3.1 It is proposed to extract between up to 5200 tonnes of sandstone over a 5- year 
 period. The annual extraction would be between 1000 and 1200 tonnes. It is 
 expected that the sandstone would be used for the restoration of historic 

Page 22



 buildings that had been originally constructed with the exact or similar 
 sandstone. Additionally stone would be used for new build projects. 

 
3.2 The application site is only a small part of the former quarry. The proposal would 

  include access tracks, quarry compound and stone storage and loading area as 
  well as the operational quarry extraction  area that involves the reopening of a 
  small portion of the former quarry to extract an area of outcropped sandstone to 
  the southwest of the ‘Blue Lagoon’. The main area for extraction is an 8 metre 
  high sandstone face approximately 50 metres in length that would be worked in a 
  south-easterly direction. Working  would be intermittent for 6 to 12 week periods 
  depending on demand. Working hours would be 8.00 am to 5.00 pm  
  Monday to Friday, with reduced hours of 09.00 to 16.00 in winter. There would 
  be no working on Saturdays, Sundays or Bank Holidays. 
 

3.3 Extraction would be by a mechanical excavator with the use of black powder 
  (low velocity explosive) to break the larger blocks of sandstone or create a joint 
  at the quarry  face. The material would be loaded on to a forklift for transport to 
  the storage area which would be located near to the site entrance to the north 
  of the working area. 
 

3.4 No crushing, screening or processing of stone is proposed at the application 
  site. All stone would be transported to the applicant’s masonry works at  
  Haltwhistle by 6-wheeled articulated vehicle. Annual extraction of 1000 – 1200 
  tonnes would equate to two vehicles leaving the site each week. However, as 
  extraction would be intermittent, the proposal is that there would be a maximum 
  of six two-way movements each working day. Vehicles would avoid entering or 
  leaving the site between 8.00am and 9.00am and 16.30 and 17.30 as well as 
  school pick-up times. 

 
3.5 It is proposed to extract the stone from the quarry in two phases. Phase 1  

  would involve extracting stone from an area to the east of the quarry. The extent 
  of phase 1 has been significantly reduced compared to the original proposal 
  meaning that the block of sandstone lying west of the ’Blue Lagoon’ will no 
  longer be removed.  Phase 2 would involve extracting the main   
  sandstone outcrop that remains above ground to the west of the   
  application site. All extraction would be from above existing ground level.  

 
3.6 The site access would be from the existing access into the woodland area and 

  lead into a compound area. The compound area would be used for the storage 
  of stone as well as necessary welfare equipment. A number of trees would need 
  to be removed to widen the existing access track for the articulated vehicle and 
  at the site of the proposed  compound. The removal of trees is a feature of the 
  normal management of the woodland.  
 

3.7 The proposed haulage route from the quarry to the strategic road network (A69) 
  is via the C226 to the junction with the B6319. At this junction lorries would turn 
  towards Fourstones and travel through the village and southwards to the A69. 

 
3.8 When the quarry is operational, the non-haulage vehicle movements would 

  include daily access of one van to transport quarry operators and their small 
  tools to the site. Additionally there would be periodic visits by a low loader for 
  the delivery and collection of quarry plant. There would also be periodic visits 

Page 23



  by the quarry operators and their advisors to monitor and control extraction 
  operations.  

 
3.9 Restoration of the site would be carried out following cessation of mineral  

  extraction and would involve regrading and reprofiling the operational quarry 
  void with some of the resulting quarry spoil and then covering with fines from 
  the spoil. The spoil heaps would then be allowed to regenerate naturally and it 
  is anticipated that this would encourage the colonisation of the spoil with Birds 
  Foot Trefoil. The compound areas and access track would be regraded, seeded 
  and left to regenerate naturally as necessary. 

 
4.  Planning History 
 
4.1 The previous application (reference 16/01458/CCM) was submitted in April 
 2016. Following extensive discussions it was presented to the Strategic 
 Planning Committee on 7 May 2019 with a recommendation to refuse planning 
 permission. The Committee voted unanimously to refuse the application. 
 
4.2 The decision notice was issued on 8 May 2019 stating that planning 
 permission was refused for the following reasons.  
 

 1. The proposal had not demonstrated that the risks posed by the development 
to groundwater could be satisfactorily managed. Therefore the proposal was 
 contrary to paragraphs 163 and 170 of the NPPF and Policy GD5 of the 
Tynedale LDF Core Strategy. 

 

 2. The proposal was for mineral extraction and associated restoration. The 
 proposed restoration scheme could not be fully assessed due to the lack of 
 submission of an indicative restoration scheme. This was contrary to the NPPF 
 and Policies R1, EP22 and SM1 of the Northumberland Minerals Local Plan. 
 

5.  Changes from the Previous Application 
 
5.1 The previous planning application originally sought extraction from three phases 
 of working. Phase 3 was subsequently deleted and was not included in the 
 proposals considered by the Strategic Planning Committee. Phase 3 is not 
 included in the current application. As stated in paragraph 3.5 above, the current 
 proposal also excludes most of the original Phase 1.  
 
5.2 The new application is supported by information that seeks to address the 
 previous reasons for refusal. This includes the results of the monitoring of 4 
 groundwater boreholes, additional topographical information to support the 
 assessment of surface water in the locality, a revised surface water management 
 scheme and a proposed restoration scheme. The application is also supported 
 by new information on ecology and noise. Some of this information was not 
 submitted when the new application was originally submitted but has 
 subsequently been provided in response to a number of requests for further 
 information from statutory consultees, Council officers and members of the 
 public. Each of these is described and assessed in section 7 of this report. 
 
 
 

 

Page 24



6.  Consultations, Neighbour Notification and Publicity 
 
6.1 The application was advertised by press and site notices and neighbour 
 notification and consultation with statutory and other bodies was carried out in 
 April 2020. Two subsequent rounds of neighbour notification and consultation 
 were carried out in August 2020 and January 2021 following the receipt of 
 amended proposals and additional information. In response to requests for 
 further information on water management issues, revised plans and additional 
 information was submitted in October 2021. The applicants agreed that after the 
 various water management organisations had considered this information and 
 submitted final comments to the Mineral Planning Authority, the application 
 should be presented to the Strategic Planning Committee for determination.  
 
 Consultation Responses 
 

Warden Parish 
Council  

Objects to the proposed re-opening of Prudham Quarry. We 
were surprised to see a repeat application containing so little 
change from the original, which was rejected overwhelmingly 
by the planning committee last time. The Council appreciates 
the unique and special qualities of the stone and would be 
more sympathetic to its use in restoration and repair but would 
find it difficult to support quarrying for new build. 
 
Over the past 2 years the Council has become increasingly 
concerned about the danger posed to residents by traffic 
travelling through the village; numerous complaints have been 
received. We are currently working with our county councillor to 
address these problems. The additional risks posed by the 
proposed heavy lorry traffic travelling on the narrow roads that 
run through our villages are unnecessary and unacceptable.  
 
We do not pretend to possess expertise in the hydrological 
issues raised by this application but note the significant efforts 
put in by local residents to ensure that water supply, flooding 
and landslip issues are taken seriously.  We would urge the 
committee to take these aspects fully into account. The report 
from a consultant repeatedly says that "there is no evidence 
to… " but the damaging impacts of this application will only 
become evident after the quarry has been re-opened, which of 
course will be too late for local residents threatened by flooding 
and landslip. 
 
Not for the first time in recent years we are faced with the 
prospect of a small, industrial development in the village which 
it appears will provide no new jobs and little economic benefit 
to the village.  
 
We made reference in our comments on the original 
application regarding the importance of the effects on wildlife of 
the quarrying proposal. The subsequent declaration of a 
"climate emergency" by Northumberland County Council 
makes it more imperative than ever to protect wildlife sites 
such as this from industrial development.  

Page 25



 
We would like to see this planning application firmly rejected 
again, but in the event of permission being granted we would 
like to see the following conditions imposed.  
a) A condition to limit the number of vehicular movements to 
not more than 6 on any day. The Council also has concerns 
over the planned route for loaded vehicles passing Park 
Shields, Whinneyhill and through Fourstones. A route 
northbound on the C226 to the B6318 would be preferable. 
The Council appreciates the necessity for a Section 59 
agreement relating to the extraordinary traffic using the 
highway. 
b) The Council would want to see an appropriate 
comprehensive risk assessment that the threats of 
groundwater can be satisfactorily managed. 
c) It is important that the intrinsic nature conservation value of 
the site is safeguarded through mitigation measures for 
reptiles, breeding birds and red squirrels.  A restoration 
strategy and mitigation plan are necessary. 
 
The Council trusts that the Council will be advised by NPPF 
paragraphs 109, 110 and 144, Local Plan policies NE21, NE24 
and NE26, Sections 66 and 72 of the Planning (Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, Schedule 1, Bird, 
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 and Section 41 Natural 
Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. 
 
The Parish Council reaffirmed its objections following 
consultation on revised plans and updated information, 
considering that the changes appear to be largely cosmetic in 
nature and expressing concern at inaccuracies in the plans 
particularly in respect of the all important bund. 

Newbrough Parish 
Council  

Supports this application and has no objection in principle to 
the extraction of stone from Prudhamstone Quarry. 
  
The site is a quarry, as its name Prudhamstone Quarry 
confirms, and because of this the site has metamorphosed into 
a locally designated site of nature conservation importance. 
The council anticipates that this short period of development 
will result in further enhancement of this site, although the 
submitted Restoration Plan lacks detail. 
  
This very beautiful, attractive sandstone was been used in the 
building of prominent buildings, many with listed status, in 
Newbrough and Warden as well as McEwan Hall  and 
Waverley Hotel in Edinburgh. The quarry still has historical, 
cultural and economic benefits to offer. 
  
The Council would like mitigation measures in place for 
reptiles, breeding birds and, in the event of their return, red 
squirrel. The existing monitoring sites for groundwater levels 
should be periodically re-measured. 
  

Page 26



The Council realise that the road traffic will be small but it will 
be significant, so the damage caused to the tarmac will need 
monitoring.  It is not anticipated that noise will be an issue but 
we would want the developers to consider the fitting of all 
vehicles working on the site with reversing alarms of the "white 
noise" type rather than "bleepers". 
  
Health and Safety measures will advise the developers in the 
display of danger warning signs to alert members of the public 
of the dangers of the quarrying activities, and the Council 
would certainly reinforce this. 
  
The Council approves of the “restoration au naturel” – however 
this will need monitoring to ensure that the appropriate species 
were regenerating. 

Historic England  As the proposed development would not affect the setting of 
Scheduled Ancient Monuments or Listed Buildings, Historic 
England wishes to make no comments on the application. 

Natural England  No objections as proposed development will not have 
significant adverse effects on statutorily protected nature 
conservation sites or landscapes. 

Environment 
Agency  

No objections subject to conditions. 
 
The Agency originally objected to the proposed development 
but has withdrawn that objection following the submission of 
additional information and is now satisfied that any risks to 
groundwater can be satisfactorily managed.  

Northumberland 
Wildlife Trust  

No objections.  
 
The Trust originally objected to the proposed development on 
grounds that the applicant had not provided information on how 
the geological features of the Fourstones and Park Shield 
Quarries Local Wildlife and Geodiversity Site (LWS) would be 
protected and it also had wildlife concerns. However, it is now 
satisfied that both these matters have been adequately 
addressed.   

County Highways  No objections subject to the imposition of planning conditions 
related to the covering of vehicles, restriction of vehicle 
movements, a highway condition survey and a section 59 
agreement for the repair of any damage to the highway 
resulting from the quarry operation. 

County Ecologist  No objections subject to the imposition of conditions to 
protected species protected by law and to ensure that the 
restoration of the site conserves and enhances important 
habitats. 

Public Protection  No objections subject to the imposition of conditions on noise, 
dust and private water supplies.  
 
Public Protection originally objected to the proposed 
development but has withdrawn that objection following the 
submission of additional information and is now satisfied that 
the operation of the site can be satisfactorily managed. 

Lead Local Flood No objections subject to the imposition of conditions to ensure 

Page 27



Authority (LLFA)  the effective disposal of surface water drainage and to ensure 
that the risk of flooding does not increase. The LLFA have 
liaised at length with the Environment Agency on any impacts 
that the proposed development might have on groundwater, 
surface water and flooding off-site. It is considered that the 
proposed surface water scheme will not increase the risk of 
flooding subject to ongoing maintenance of the on-site features 
and ongoing monitoring, which are the subjects of 
recommended conditions. 
 
The LLFA originally objected to the proposed development but 
has withdrawn that objection following the submission of 
additional information and is now satisfied that the operation of 
the site can be satisfactorily managed. 

Countryside/ Rights 
Of Way  

No objections provided that Public Footpath No 6 is protected 
where it passes the proposed site. 

County 
Archaeologist  

No objections subject to the imposition of a condition requiring 
an appropriate programme of archaeological work. 

Building 
Conservation  

No objections as it is considered that the proposed 
development will not cause any harm to surrounding 
designated heritage assets. 

 
 Public Responses 
 
 Neighbour Notification 
 
7.2 The number of neighbours notified and the numbers objecting, supporting or 
 submitting general comments are listed below. 
 

Number of Neighbours Notified 254 

Number of Objections 47* 

Number of Support 9 

Number of General Comments 3 

• Note: There were objections from 47 individuals with some individuals 
submitting more than one letter of objection.  

 
 Notices 
 
7.3 Site notices were posted in the vicinity of the site on 17 and 22 April 2020. A 
 press notice was placed in the Hexham Courant on 23 April 2020.  
 
 Summary of Responses: 
 
7.4 The letters of objection received to the application object on the following 
 grounds. 

• Loss of woodland and wildlife habitats. 

• Threats to endangered and protected species. 

• Suitable stone for historic buildings is available from other quarries. 

• Proposed haulage route not suitable for heavy goods vehicles. 

• HGVs will increase risks to other users of the local roads including cyclists 
and pedestrians. 

• Danger to users of public footpath from Frankham to the public highway. 

Page 28



• Increased noise disturbance for residents and wildlife from quarrying and 
traffic. 

• Concerns about dust and air pollution from quarrying and traffic. 

• Concerns about blasting 

• Negative impact on tourism and local economy. 

• No employment or economic benefits to local community. 

• Inappropriate development in the Green Belt. 

• Hydrology and land stability concerns increased following recent removal 
of mature trees from spoil heaps. 

• Increased risk of localised flooding. 

• Previous working resulted in a landslip on a spoil heap contaminating 
spring drinking water. 

• Disturbance to the complex hydrology around Frankham 

• Potential for contamination of local springs and Blue Lagoon. 

• Concern about adverse effects from suspended solids on quality of water 
supply to Woodlands Spring. 

• Concern about accuracy of submitted plans and information. 
 
7.5 The letters of support received make the following points. 

• Local need for employment 

• Appropriate use for the stone in refurbishment of historic buildings. 

• Avoidance of disruption to local resident, 

• Low levels of traffic to be generated. 

• Good standard of access road. 

• Support for return of local industrial heritage of area. 
 
7.6 The above is a summary of the comments. The full written text is available on 
 our website at:  
 https://publicaccess.northumberland.gov.uk/online-          

 applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=Q87O7YQSFNO00 

 
8.  Planning Policy 
 
 Development Plan Policy 
 
8.1  The Development Plan in respect of the application site comprises saved 

 policies from the Northumberland Minerals Local Plan (NMLP) (2000), the
 Tynedale Local Development Framework Core Strategy (TLDFCS) (2007) and 
 saved policies from the Tynedale  District Local Plan (TDLP) (2000). 

 
8.2  The following saved policies in the NMLP are relevant to the consideration of 

 the application. 
  

S1 Minerals Supply and Efficiency of Use 

S6 Good Working Practices 

SA1 Future Sandstone Workings 

EP3 Landscape Protection 

EP6 Sites of Regional or Local Importance for Nature Conservation 

EP7 Conserving Nature Conservation Value 

Page 29

https://publicaccess.northumberland.gov.uk/online-%09%09%09%09%20%20%20%20%20%20%09applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=Q87O7YQSFNO00
https://publicaccess.northumberland.gov.uk/online-%09%09%09%09%20%20%20%20%20%20%09applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=Q87O7YQSFNO00


EP14 Protecting and Maintaining Employment 

EP15 Protecting Tourism and Recreation Interests 

EP16 Protecting Public Rights of Way 

EP 17 and18 Encouraging Alternatives to Road Transport and Mitigating 
Impacts 

EP19 Protection of Local Communities 

EP22 Ensuring Acceptable Site Operations 

EP23 Securing Community Benefit 

SM1 Ensuring Good Site Management 

R1 Site Reclamation 

 
8.3  The following policies in the TLDFCS are relevant to the consideration of the 

 application. 
  

GD3 Green Belt 

GD4 Principles for Transport and Accessibility 

GD5 Minimising Flood risk 

NE1 Principles for the Natural Environment 

 
8.4  The following saved policies in the TDLP are relevant to the consideration of 

 the application. 
 

NE21 Protection of Sites of Nature Conservation Interest 

NE26 Protection of Habitats of Special Importance to Wildlife 

NE27 Protection of Protected Species 

NE33 Protection of Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows 

 
8.5 Paragraph 48 of the NPPF states that weight can be given to policies contained 
 in emerging plans dependent upon three criteria: the stage of preparation of the 
 plan; the extent to which there are unresolved objections to policies within the 
 plan; and the degree of consistency with the NPPF. The Northumberland Local 
 Plan - Publication Draft Plan (Regulation 19) (NLP) was submitted to the 
 Secretary of State for Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 
 on 29 May 2019, and is currently going through the examination process.  
 
8.6 On 9 June 2021, the Council published for consultation, a Schedule of proposed 
 Main Modifications to the draft Local Plan that the independent Inspectors 
 examining the plan consider are necessary to make the plan ‘sound’. As such 
 the plan is at an advanced stage of preparation, and the policies in the NLP - 
 Publication Draft Plan (Regulation 19) (Jan 2019) as amended by proposed Main 
 Modifications (June 2021), are considered to be consistent with the NPPF. The 
 NLP is a material consideration in determining this application, with the amount 
 of weight that can be given to specific policies (and parts thereof) being 
 dependent upon whether Main Modifications are proposed, and the extent and 
 significance of unresolved objections. 

Page 30



 

STP3 Principles of Sustainable Development 

STP8 Development in the Green Belt 

ENV2 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

WAT3 Flooding 

POL2 Pollution and Air, Soil and Water Quality 

MIN1 Environmental Criteria for Assessing Mineral Proposals 

MIN2 Criteria for Assessing the Benefits of Mineral Proposals 

MIN3 Minerals and Landfill Restoration, Aftercare and After-use 

MIN11 Natural Building and Roofing Stone (Strategic Policy)  

 
 National Planning Policy 
 
8.6 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (July 2021) and Planning 
 Practice Guidance (PPG) are material considerations in determining this 
 application.     
 
 Other Documents and Strategies 
 
8.7 Northumberland Landscape Character Assessment (2010) 
 
9.  Appraisal 
 
9.1 The main issues for consideration in the determination of this application are: 
 - Principle of the development 
 - Green Belt 
 - Landscape and visual impact 
 -  Impact on residential amenity 
 - Transport considerations 
 -  Impact on ecology 
 - Impact on heritage assets 
 - Impact on surface water and ground water 
 -  Impact on ground stability 
 - Restoration of the site 
 - Benefits of the proposed development 
 
 Principle of the Development 
 
9.2 Policy S1 of the NMLP states that land will be made available for mineral 
 working to allow an appropriate and efficient contribution to local, regional and 
 national needs where the development would not result in an undue adverse 
 impact on local communities or the environment. NMLP policy SA1 deals 
 specifically with sandstone quarries and states that proposals, including the 
 reopening of old quarries and extensions to existing quarries, will only be 
 permitted if there is a need for material which cannot be met from existing sites 
 and there would not be a significant adverse impact on local communities or the 
 environment. 
 

Page 31



9.3 Policy MIN1 of the emerging NLP states that proposals for mineral working will 
 be supported where the applicant can demonstrate that any adverse effects on 
 local communities and the environment are acceptable. The policy sets out 
 environmental criteria against which proposals will be assessed. Policy MIN2 
 sets out the benefits of mineral extraction. Policy MIN 11 states that proposals 
 for the provision of building stone, including from historic quarries which do not 
 have a current planning permission will be supported where certain criteria can 
 be demonstrated. 
 
9.4 The NPPF gives great weight to the benefits of mineral extraction, including the 
 economy and sets out various factors that should be taken into account in 
 determining planning applications. These include ensuring that there are no 
 unacceptable adverse impacts on the natural and historic environment and 
 human health; ensure that any unavoidable noise, dust and particle emissions 
 and that any blasting vibrations are controlled, mitigated or removed at source, 
 and establish appropriate noise limits for extraction in proximity to noise 
 sensitive properties; and providing for restoration to be carried out to high 
 environmental standards (paragraph 211). 
 
9.5 In relation to building stone the NPPF states that MPAs should “consider how to 
 meet any demand for small-scale extraction of building stone at, or close to, 
 relic quarries, needed for the repair of heritage  assets, taking account of the 
 need to protect designated sites; and recognise the small-scale nature and 
 impact of building and roofing stone quarries, and the need for a flexible 
 approach to the duration of planning permissions, reflecting the intermittent or 
 low rate of working at many sites’ (paragraph 211 (f) and (g).  
 
9.6 In the submission the applicant stated that NMLP Policy SA1 that requires  need 
for the development to be demonstrated, does not accord with the  provisions of NPPF 
 paragraph 211, f and g. The applicant stated that the  proposal is in accordance 
with the NPPF and Policy MIN11 of the emerging NLP. 
 
9.7 Applications for planning permission must be determined in accordance with 
 the Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The 
 relevant Development Plan policies have been set out above. The main 
 Development Plan policy related to the principle of the development of a new or 
 reopening of a former sandstone extraction quarry is saved policy SA1 in the 
 NMLP. Although the NMLP was adopted 20 years ago its saved policies still 
 carry weight,  with the degree of weight to be afforded to individual policies 
 being influenced, inter alia, by the extent to which they are consistent with the 
 NPPF which is a material consideration.  
 
9.8 As stated above, in the submission the applicant stated that saved policy SA1 
 does not accord with the NPPF. However, although the NPPF does not set out 
 specific policy requirements in relation to the need for and supply of sandstone, 
 it is considered that saved policy SA1 provides a local approach to manage 
 development to ensure needs are addressed and balanced against the need to 
 ensure the long-term conservation needs of these finite resources. The 
 documents originally submitted with the application did not contain information 
 on the quality and characteristics of the material proposed for extraction in order 
 to fully understand the settings where it could be used or why demands for such 
 material could not be sourced from an existing quarry with planning permission.  
 

Page 32



9.9 It is considered that saved policy SA1 does carry some weight and therefore 
 the applicant was requested to provide further information in order for the policy 
 requirements to be assessed. The applicant points out that although there are 
 other sandstone quarries with planning permissions in Northumberland, there is 
 considerable variation in their colour and physical properties. It is stated that 
 the sandstone at the application site has been tested and shown to be a quality 
 product with unique characteristics not available at other quarries in the county 
 that would be used in restoration projects and new developments that are 
 required to be constructed of materials that respect their settings.  
 
9.10 Some local residents have suggested that the quality of the sandstone from the 
 former Prudhamstone Quarry has been variable and that any need for 
 sandstone could be met from existing quarries. The applicants acknowledge that 
 some of the stone did in the past show a tendency to weather under polluted 
 atmospheric conditions, but they consider that the stone came from the upper 
 weaker beds which show evidence of alteration. They state that the lower beds 
 that are proposed for extraction are more resilient, show no evidence of 
 deterioration where exposed and exhibit close compatibility with the more 
 resilient sandstone previously worked at the quarry and used in traditional 
 buildings. They state that the main use of the stone will be in conservation works 
 and building repairs. It can be seen on site that the top layers of the main pillar of 
 sandstone proposed for extraction are weathered, presumably due to their 
 exposure to rain, but that the exposed faces show no such signs of cracking or 
 splitting. 
 
9.11 The applicants have submitted details of significant buildings that were built with 
 sandstone from the former Prudhamstone quarry. These included Central 
 Railway Station, Newcastle upon Tyne (1840s and during restoration work in 
 1976), Municipal Offices, Stirling (1900s  and 1960s), a number of well known 
 buildings in Edinburgh including McEwan’s Hall (1887-97), North British Hotel, 
 Princes Street (1902), Scotsman Buildings, Market Street and North Bridge 
 (1902) as well as many tenements and villas in the city, as well as paving for the 
 entrance court to Hillgate House, Old Bailey, London (1984) and locally for the 
 village hall in Newbrough and many of the stone built buildings in the locality. 
 The scale of working at the former quarry suggests that there will be many 
 buildings both locally and further afield that were built with Prudhamstone 
 sandstone.  
 
9.12 The strategy in the emerging NLP for new quarries envisages them being 
 permitted where this would help maintain a steady, adequate and diverse supply 
 of materials, subject to complying with the environmental safeguards set out in 
 emerging Policy MIN1. The applicants state that the demand for stone is 
 increasing and matching stone from the upper Middle Limestone group, such as 
 that from Prudham, for use in conservation work has not been readily available 
 leading to stone that is not necessarily an ideal match being used in these works. 
 Such statements are not easy to verify but the experience of mineral planners in 
 Northumberland supports the general view that the materials from sandstone 
 quarries in the County do have diverse characteristics that cater for diverse 
 projects. This applies in particular where the quarries are geographically 
 dispersed. 
 
9.13 There are currently 10 operational sandstone quarries in Northumberland. In 
 addition there is one quarry that has planning permission but has not yet 

Page 33



 commenced operations. The planning permissions for five of these quarries will 
 cease over the next few years. Most are worked intermittently. There are no 
 operational quarries within the vicinity of the application site.  
 
9.14 Bearing in mind that the weight that can be given to policy SA1 is limited 
 because it is only partially consistent with the NPPF, it is concluded that it would 
 not be reasonable to refuse planning permission on grounds of non-compliance 
 with the first part of policy SA1. This is consistent with the officer report on the 
 original application which did not find any conflict with policy SA1. 
 
9.15 The various other aspects affecting the principle of development, including 
 whether there are unacceptable adverse impacts on local communities and the 
 natural and built environment, are dealt with in the remaining sections below of 
 this appraisal. The County Council has adopted a Screening Opinion under the 
Town & Country Planning (Environmental Impact Regulations) 2017. This concludes 
that the County Council as Minerals Planning Authority considers that the proposed 
development is not likely to have significant effects on the environment and as such is 
not considered to be EIA development. 
 
 Green Belt 
 
9.16 The site is located in the Tyne and Wear Green Belt. The NPPF states that the 
 Government attaches great importance to Green Belts. The fundamental aim of 
 Green Belt policy is to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open; 
 the essential characteristics of Green Belts are their openness and their 
 permanence (paragraph 137). 
 
9.17 The NPPF states that inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful to the 
 Green Belt and should not be approved except in very special circumstances 
 (Paragraph 147). Certain forms of development, including mineral extraction, 
 are not inappropriate provided that they preserve its openness and do not 
 conflict with the purposes of including land within it (paragraph 150). 
 
9.18 The NPPF (paragraph 138) states that the Green Belt serves five purposes: 
 a) to check the unrestricted spread of the built up area; 
 b) to prevent neighbouring towns from merging into one another; 
 b) to assist in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment; 
 d) to preserve the character and setting of historic towns; and 
 e) to assist in urban regeneration, by encouraging the recycling of derelict and 
 other urban land. 
 
9.19 Openness is not defined in the NPPF but case law has established that it is 
 considered to be more than just the absence of built development and in 
 relation to mineral development could include the impact of such features as 
 earth bunds and landscape screening. 
 
9.20 In terms of the purposes of the Green Belt it is the third purpose – to assist in 
 safeguarding the countryside from encroachment - that is most relevant in 
 relation to the application site. It is necessary therefore to consider whether the 
 proposed development would constitute an unacceptable form of 
 encroachment into the countryside. The proposed development would be 
 located in a former quarry on land within a wooded area. The proposed 
 extraction operations would not be visible from outside the site even if the trees 

Page 34



 were removed. The proposal is for a relatively small-scale operation over a 
 limited time period. 
 
9.21 It is concluded that the proposed development would not result in any 
 unacceptable loss of openness and would not represent encroachment into the 
 countryside. The proposal therefore is not contrary to the aims and purposes of 
 the Green Belt and would not represent inappropriate development in the Green 
 Belt. It therefore complies with paragraphs 137, 138 and 150 of the  NPPF. 
 
 Landscape and Visual Impact 
 
9.22 Policy EP3 of the NMLP requires minerals developments to take account of 
 potential impacts on the landscape during and after working. Policy MIN1 in the 
 emerging NLP requires applicants for mineral developments to demonstrate that 
 the proposal can be effectively and appropriately integrated with its  surroundings 
 and the character of the landscape. 
 
9.23 In the Northumberland Landscape Character Assessment, the site is mainly 
 located within Landscape Character Type 31: Glacial Trough Valley Sides. Key 
 characteristics of LCT 31 include valley sides of a glacial trough between the 
 North Pennines and the Northumberland uplands; ancient semi-natural woodland 
 associated with natural springs and incised boundary valleys; and areas of 
 coniferous plantation and shelterbelts in  places. LCT 31 is divided into a number 
 of Landscape Character Areas and the site is mainly within LCA 31(b): 
 Haltwhistle to Bridge End, in which area the valley sides are characterised by 
 a strong pattern of hawthorn hedges with hedgerow trees and areas of semi-
 natural woodland in deep gullies which drain the upland to the north. The 
 access track lies within the adjoining LCT 29: Broad Wooded Valley. One of 
 the key qualities of LCT 29 is stated as being the remnants of past mining 
 activity including disused railways, stone bridges and old quarries which add 
 local visual and historical interest 
 
9.24 The wider former quarry site is an established feature in the local landscape. 
 The application site forms only a small part of the former quarry and is not  visible 
 from beyond the immediate area due to the screening effects of topography and 
 mature woodland. Site operations would not be seen from public roads within the 
 immediate area. Vehicles transporting material from the site would be visible but 
 the limited vehicle movements mean that the visual impact is not considered to 
 be significant. Overall therefore the proposal would have only limited effects on 
 visual amenity and the character of the local and wider landscape. It therefore 
 complies with Policy EP3 in the NMLP and Policy MIN1 in the emerging NLP. 
 
 Impact on Residential Amenity 
 
9.25 Policy EP19 of the NMLP requires consideration of the potential disturbance to 
 local communities. Policy S6 of the NMLP aims to protect local communities 
 through ensuring high operational standards and long-term environmental 
 improvements. Policy MIN1 in the emerging NLP requires applicants to 
 demonstrate that there is appropriate separation between the site and dwellings 
 and other sensitive uses, to prevent unacceptable levels of noise, dust, 
 vibration, air pollution and harmful visual impact. Paragraph 211 (c) of the NPPF 
 states that when determining applications for mineral extraction MPAs should 
 ensure that any unavoidable noise, dust and particle emissions are controlled, 

Page 35



 mitigated or removed at source and recommends that appropriate noise limits 
 for extraction in proximity to noise sensitive properties are established.  
 
9.26 The following paragraphs deal separately with noise, dust and blasting / 
 vibration. Transport considerations and impact on private water supplies are 
 considered in subsequent sections of this report. 
 
 Noise 
 
9.27 National Planning Practice Guidance recommends that MPAs set noise limits at 
 noise sensitive properties that do not exceed the background noise levels by 
 more than 10dB(A) during normal working hours (07.00 – 19.00). Where it will 
 be difficult not to exceed the background level by more than 10dB(A) LAeq, 1 
 hour free field without imposing unreasonable burdens on the mineral operator, 
 the limit set should be as near that level as practicable. In any event the total 
 noise from the operations should not exceed 55dB(A) LAeq, 1hr free field 
 between 0700 – 1900, and 42b(A)LAeq 1hr free field between 20.00 – 07.00. 
 
9.28 A noise survey was carried out and found that the background (LA90) level was 
 very low at 26dB LA90. The three nearest residential properties are 
 Prudhamstone Cottage, about 130 metres to the west of the extraction area, 
 Frankham Fells Boarding Kennels about 345 metres to the north and The Old 
 Gardens about 295 metres to the south. The submitted noise assessment  report 
 demonstrates that in the worst case scenario, predicted noise levels at these 
 properties would range between 27 dBLAeq 1 hour and 40 dBLAeq 1 hour and 
 would therefore not exceed the night time limits set out in NPPG even although 
 all operations would be carried out during daytimes.  
 
9.29 The Council’s Environmental Protection Team have undertaken a technical 
 review of the submitted information and have assessed the environmental 
 impacts relevant to the proposed development. It considers that the activity 
 proposed at Prudham Quarry will be relatively small-scale and time limited and 
 that the topography of the site in relation to nearby properties will limit the 
 environmental impacts. Taking into account the findings of the noise assessment 
 report, it is agreed that achieving a limit of not more than 10dB(A) above 
 background would be an unreasonable burden on the mineral operator. Some 
 local residents have questioned whether the choice of Frankham Fells Boarding 
 Kennels was an appropriate location to record background noise levels. Whilst 
 there are other properties closer to the application site where background noise 
 levels might have been lower, these are screened by mature woodland and 
 topographic features. The Council’s Environmental Protection Officer has raised 
 no objections on noise impact subject to the imposition of conditions. It is 
 concluded that the noise impact on residential amenity would be acceptable 
 subject to compliance with planning conditions and that the proposal therefore 
 complies with policies EP19 and S6 of the NMLP, Policy POL2 of the emerging 
 NLP and paragraph 211 (c) of the NPPF. 
 
 Dust 
 
9.30 National Planning Practice Guidance advises that where dust emissions are 
 likely to arise, mineral operators should prepare a dust assessment study. The 
 planning statement submitted with the planning application recognises that the 
 quarrying operations have the potential to create dust from the operation of 

Page 36



 wheeled vehicles and tractor plant in dry conditions. It proposes that in order to 
 minimise the potential for dust generation the access tracks would be hard 
 surfaced and untracked areas, including those within the quarry, would colonise 
 with vegetation over time. 
 
9.31 A dust assessment study has not been submitted with the application. 
 However, the Council’s Environmental Protection Team considers that the 
 proposed mineral operations are unlikely to generate dust that will cause loss of 
 amenity to local residents and the activity does not require an environmental 
 permit under the Environmental Permitting (England and Wales) regulations 
 2016. It has recommended conditions requiring the submission of a Dust 
 Management Plan covering dust generation, mitigation, monitoring over the 
 lifetime of the development and management of any dust related complaints. It is 
 concluded therefore that the proposal complies with policies EP19 and S6 of 
 the NMLP, Policy POL2 of the emerging NLP and paragraph 211 (c) of the 
 NPPF. 
 
 Blasting and Vibration 
 
9.32 It is anticipated that blasting using small volumes of low velocity black powder 
 explosive would be required to split the sandstone. This is the technique that 
 was used at the former quarry as can be seen from the shot holes on the quarry 
 face. The explosive would not be stored on site but would be transported to the 
 quarry by site operatives when it was needed. 
 
9.33  The three effects associated with blasting are ground vibration, air over 
 pressure and projected rock particles (flyrock). The extent of disturbance is 
 dependent on a number of factors including type and quantity of explosive, 
 degree of confinement, distance to nearest buildings, the geology and
 topography and atmospheric conditions. 
 
9.34 In this case it is not anticipated that there would be any unacceptable impact on 
 residential amenity arising from the limited blasting that would take place. A 
 condition is recommended requiring a blasting scheme to be submitted for the 
 approval of the Mineral Planning Authority. The proposal therefore complies with 
 policies EP19 and S6 of the NMLP, Policy POL2 of the emerging NLP and 
 paragraph 211 (c) of the NPPF. 
 
 Transport Considerations 
 
9.35 Policy EP18 in the NMLP states that the assessment of proposals for mineral 
 workings will take into account transport considerations including the suitability of 
 the road network to accommodate traffic, the routeing of traffic to avoid 
 settlements and the effect on highway safety, highway maintenance and the 
 environment. Policy MIN1 in the emerging NLP states that appropriate weight will 
 be given to the capacity and suitability of the transport network, including 
 vehicle movements, site access arrangements and impacts on non-motorised 
 users with applicants having to demonstrate that transport by rail or water is not 
 practicable or feasible. 
 
9.36 It is proposed that there would be a maximum of 6 two-way heavy goods vehicle 
 (HGV) movements per day during the periods of working. The applicants have 
 agreed that there would be no HGV movements before 09.00 or after 15.00 and 

Page 37



 when the site is not operational. The proposed haulage route is from the site 
 onto the C226, to the junction with the B6319 and through Fourstones Village to 
 the A69. In addition non-haulage vehicles would include daily access by one van 
 to transport quarry operators to the site, periodic visits by a low loader for the 
 delivery and collection of quarry plant and periodic visits by the quarry 
 operator and monitoring personnel.  
 
9.37 Warden Parish Council and some local residents have raised concerns about 
 traffic passing through Fourstones. However, an appropriate Transport 
 Assessment has been submitted by the applicant, vehicle numbers would be 
 limited and County Highways have raised no objections subject to the imposition 
 of planning conditions related to vehicles having their loads secured, restriction 
 of vehicle movements, a highway condition survey and a section 59 agreement 
 for the repair of any damage to the highway resulting from the quarry operation. 
 There is no rail or water connection to the site. 
 
9.38 Public Footpath No. 6 passes adjacent to the site. Some local residents have 
 raised concerns that local walkers use the access track leading to the 
 woodland.  The Council’s Rights of Way Officer has raised no objections to the 
 proposal subject to the condition of the public footpath being protected. 
 
9.39 It is concluded that the proposed development complies with policy EP18 in the 
 NMLP and policy MIN1 in the emerging NLP. It is therefore acceptable in 
 highways terms subject to the imposition of appropriate planning conditions and 
 the satisfactory conclusion of an agreement for the repair of any damage to the 
 highway resulting from the quarry operation. 
 
 Impact on Ecology 
 
9.40 Policy NE21 in the TDLP seeks to protect Sites of Nature Conservation 
 Importance. The policy states that development which could destroy or 
 adversely affect these sites will only be permitted where it can be demonstrated 
 that there are no reasonable alternative means of meeting the need and the 
 reasons for the development outweigh the need to safeguard the intrinsic nature 
 conservation value of the site. The NPPF states that in considering  proposals for 
 mineral extraction, MPAs should ensure that there are no unacceptable 
 adverse impacts on the natural environment (paragraph 211b).  It also states 
 that planning permission should be refused if significant harm to biodiversity 
 resulting from development cannot be avoided, mitigated or compensated 
 (paragraph 180a). Policy ENV2 in the emerging NLP states that planning 
 permission will be refused if the proposed development would adversely affect 
 Local Wildlife Sites unless it can be demonstrated that the benefits of 
 development clearly outweigh the harm to the nature conservation of the site. 
 
9.41 The application site lies wholly within the Fourstones and Park Shield Quarry 
 Local Wildlife Site (LWS), the interest features of which are the grassland flora 
 associated with the non-forested limestone areas to the east of the site and the 
 geological series represented through the site. The locally scare dingy skipper 
 butterfly also occurs on some of the grassland areas of the site.  
 
9.42 The first part of policy NE21 in the TDLP relating to the need for the 
 development has been dealt with in paragraphs 9.9 to 9.14 above.  
 

Page 38



9.43 In relation to the impact on the LWS, the County Ecologist has commented that 
 the part of the LWS included in and surrounding the planning application area is 
 dominated by planted and self-sown conifers and therefore considers that the 
 proposed quarrying will not harm the special features of the LWS. 
 
9.44 In relation to the impact on protected species, the County Ecologist has 
 commented that there are no known red squirrels at the site and even if they 
 were present the amount of the plantation to be lost is such a small proportion 
 of the total that this would not adversely affect them or compromise any future 
 colonisation.  The County Ecologist considers that great crested newts are 
 unlikely to be present on the site and restoration presents opportunities to 
 provide suitable habitats for the dingy skipper butterfly.  The County Ecologist 
 has also noted that all wild birds and their nests are protected and will need to 
 be accounted for before any works commence. In conclusion therefore the 
 County Ecologist has raised no objections to the proposed development subject 
 to conditions being imposed to protect any species protected by law. 
 
9.45 The Northumberland Wildlife Trust (NWT) originally objected on grounds that the 
 applicant had not provided information on how the geological features of the 
 Fourstones and Park Shield Quarries Local Wildlife and Geodiversity Site (LWS) 
 would be protected and it also had wildlife concerns. However, following the 
 submission of further information and discussions with the County Ecologist, 
 NWT is now satisfied that both these matters have been adequately addressed. 
 Warden Parish Council and a number of the objections from local residents have 
 also raised concerns about the adverse impacts on the ecology of the site. 
 
9.46 It is considered that the proposal will not harm the main geological features of 
 the LWS. The main quarry face will not be worked as the proposal relates to 
 extraction only from small areas of outcropped sandstone.  
 
9.47 Whilst the concerns of the Parish Council and local residents are recognised, 
 having regard to the views of the County Ecologist and NWT it is concluded that 
 the proposal complies with policy NE21 of the TDLP, Policy ENV2 of the 
 emerging NLP and paragraphs 180a and 211b of the NPPF. 
 
 Impact on Heritage Assets 
 
9.48 The NPPF states that in considering proposals for mineral extraction, MPAs 
 should ensure that there are no unacceptable adverse impacts on the historic 
 environment (paragraph 211b).  It also states that in determining applications 
 generally, account should be taken of the desirability of sustaining and 
 enhancing the significance of heritage assets (paragraph 197a). Policy MIN1(e) 
 in the emerging NLP requires applicants to demonstrate that the proposal will 
 not result in unacceptable harm to heritage assets. 
 
9.49 The former Prudhamstone Quarry was the subject of the English Heritage 
 Monuments Protection Programme (MPP) for the Quarrying Industry in  
 1996/97. The Step 3 reporting stage of the MPP recommended that the site 
 should be scheduled because of its national importance. However, due to 
 resource issues and a change in designation focus within English Heritage this 
 was not progressed. 
 

Page 39



9.50 The applicant has carried out an archaeological assessment of the site which 
 identified the significance of the features that would be removed or impacted 
 as a result of the proposed extraction. The assessment concludes that the most 
 significant parts of the quarry would not be affected by the proposal and that 
 the impact on the features of lesser significance can be mitigated by 
 investigation and recording. The County Archaeologist agrees with the 
 assessment report in terms of the significance of the features to be affected by 
 the proposal and has raised no objections subject to the imposition of a condition 
 requiring an appropriate programme of archaeological work. 
 
9.51 Mineral Planning Authorities are required to consider the effects that a 
 development proposal could have on listed buildings and their settings and to 
 have special regard to preserving the building, its setting or any features of 
 special architectural or historic interest it may have. Special attention must also 
 be paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or 
 appearance of conservation areas when considering development in a 
 conservation area. English Heritage has also issued advice that the 
 assessment should consider the setting of conservation areas. 
 
9.52 East Fourstones Farmhouse is a grade II listed building located 150 metres 
 south of the application site. There are also separately listed farm buildings 
 and shelter shed and pigsties associated with this farm. Newbrough 
 Conservation Area, which includes a number of important historic buildings 
 including Newbrough Park and Home Farmhouse, is about 1.5 kilometres to the 
 west of the application site. The Council’s Building Conservation Officer has 
 raised no objections as it is considered that the proposed development would 
 not cause any harm to these designated heritage assets. 
 
9.53 It is concluded therefore the proposed development is acceptable in terms of 
 its potential impact on heritage assets in the area and complies with 
 paragraphs 197 and 211 of the NPPF and policy MIN1(e) in the emerging NLP. 
 
 Impact on Surface Water and Ground Water 
 
9.54 Policy NE1 in the TLDFCS states that the relationship between development 
 and the natural environment should be managed to maintain the quality of 
 ground and surface water. The NPPF states that planning decisions should 
 contribute to and enhance the local environment by preventing new and 
 existing development from contributing to, being put at unacceptable risk from, 
 or being adversely affected by unacceptable levels of water pollution and that 
 development should wherever possible help to improve local environmental 
 conditions such as water quality (paragraph 174 e). Policy WAT1 in the 
 emerging NLP states that development will not be supported if it could disrupt 
 the ground water movement or affect its chemical balance. Policy MIN1 in the 
 emerging NLP states that applicants should consider the potential for the 
 proposal to affect the flow, quality and quantity of ground and surface water 
 supplies. 
 
9.55 Quarrying operations have the potential to impact on groundwater through 
 creating excavations within the water table and causing effects to the 
 management of surface water through altering existing water infiltration rates 
 and water flows to off site catchments. Potential alterations to water flows can 
 impact on aquifers and local springs in the vicinity of the site.  

Page 40



 
9.56 The potential impact of the proposals on surface water and ground water has 
 been the focus of considerable discussion, both on the original application and 
 the current application. The Committee may recall that the Environment Agency, 
 Local Lead Flood Authority and the Council’s Public Protection Team objected 
 to the original application and the potential impact on ground water was one of 
 the reasons for refusing that application. 
 
9.57 As noted above (paragraph 5.2) the new application is supported by 
 information that seeks to address the previous reason for refusal. This includes 
 the results of the monitoring of 4 groundwater boreholes and additional 
 topographical information to support the  assessment of surface water in the 
 locality. Subsequently revised proposals and additional information have been 
 submitted in response to objections, concerns and requests for further details 
 from the statutory consultees, council officers and local residents. Most recently 
 an amended and updated Surface Water Management Scheme together with a 
 revised plan of the Proposed Working and Drainage Scheme have been 
 submitted to be read in conjunction with the previously submitted information and 
 plans. The statutory water management organisations have assessed the 
 revised proposals against all this information, taking into account representations 
 submitted by local residents. Whilst there have been concerns raised by some 
 local residents that all this information should have been submitted with the 
 planning application and that its subsequent submission has delayed the 
 determination of the application, the Committee will be aware that this often 
 happens with complex mineral applications and that it is important that the 
 application is not presented to the Committee for determination until all relevant 
 and appropriate matters have been fully assessed. 
 
9.58 The Environment Agency originally objected on the grounds that insufficient 
 information had been submitted to demonstrate that the risks to groundwater and 
 Woodlands Spring were negligible or could be satisfactorily managed. However, 
 following the submission of the new information, the Agency has withdrawn its 
 objection. Subject to the imposition of conditions, the Agency accepts that the 
 revised surface water management scheme provides mitigation measures to 
 maintain baseline hydrological conditions and which will cover the uncertainties 
 in the conceptual hydrogeological understanding or residual risks to the 
 groundwater during and after the proposed development. The recommended 
 condition 20 includes measures to provide additional protection to groundwater. 
 These include not allowing extraction lower than 1 metre above the highest 
 recorded groundwater level in order to maintain an unsaturated zone of 
 sandstone, remove any standing water from the site if groundwater levels 
 exceed defined heights in Borehole 2 and the Blue Lagoon and desludging the 
 surface water ponds to maintain capacity for surface water and attenuation of 
 surface water run-off, baseline infiltration rates and protecting surface water and 
 groundwater quality. Condition 19 also requires the surface water collection 
 ponds to be lined with an impermeable liner to maintain baseline infiltration rates 
 and spatial distribution, minimise the impact on groundwater flow paths and 
 spring discharge rates and protect groundwater quality.  
 
9.59 The Local Lead Flood Authority also originally objected to the proposal on flood 
 risk and drainage grounds. However, following the submission of the new 
 information and detailed discussion with the Environment Agency on any impacts 
 that the proposed development might have on groundwater, surface water and 

Page 41



 flooding off site, the LLFA now consider that the proposed surface water 
 scheme will not increase the risk of flooding subject to ongoing maintenance of 
 the on-site features, ongoing monitoring and restoration, which are the subjects 
 of recommended conditions.  The LLFA has therefore withdrawn its objection 
 subject to the imposition of conditions that complement and support the 
 conditions recommended by the Environment Agency.  
 
9.60 Specialist technical officers of the Environment Agency and the Local Lead Flood 
 Authority have liaised to ensure that appropriate and consistent advice has been 
 provided to the Mineral Planning Authority. 
 
9.61 The Council’s Public Protection Team has also withdrawn a previous objection to 
 the proposed development. Public Protection’s interest in the proposal relates to 
 potential effects on private water supplies. The Private Water Supply (England) 
 Regulations 2016 (as amended) apply to private water supplies used for human 
 consumption. Water intended for human consumption means all water intended 
 for drinking, cooking, food preparation or other domestic purposes. Other 
 domestic purposes is defined in Section 216 of the water Resources Act 1991 
 and includes washing, central heating and sanitary purposes such as washing, 
 bathing, showering, laundry and toilet flushing. 
 
9.62 The County Council has a record of five private water supplies within 1 kilometre 
 of the proposed development site. The Environment Agency has stated that 
 springs at Lane House, Carr Edge, 130m north of Frankham Fell, Park Shield 
 and Fourstones Paper Mill are sourced from different rock layers or strata and 
 hence should be disconnected from the proposed workings. The Prudhamstone 
 House borehole is sourced from the underlying Four Fathom Limestone and 
 is also therefore geologically disconnected from the proposed development. 
 However, the Environment Agency recommended further assessment due to its 
 proximity to the workings if surface water mitigation is required. Whilst the 
 development should not adversely affect these private water supplies, Public 
 Protection have recommended the imposition of a planning condition requiring 
 the operator to investigate any complaint relating to an adverse impact on a 
 private water supply due to extraction activities.  
 
9.63 The owners of Woodlands have expressed concerns about the potential impact 
 of the proposed development on a spring at their property.  They have pointed 
 out that flows from the spring increased following the removal of sandstone from 
 the former quarry in 2013 for testing purposes, resulting in flooding of their 
 property. Public Protection point out that Woodlands spring is not used for 
 human consumption or domestic purposes and that the use of water from the 
 Woodlands spring in a garden for ornamental features and occasional garden 
 watering falls outside the Private Water Supply  (England) Regulations 2016 (as 
 amended). Notwithstanding this point, the revised proposals and recommended 
 conditions provide protection to groundwater flow paths and quality as set out in 
 paragraphs 9.58 and 9.59 above. 
 
9.64 It is concluded therefore that, subject to the imposition of conditions as 
 recommended by the Environment Agency, Local Lead Flood Authority and 
 Public Protection, the proposed development is acceptable in terms of its impact 
 on ground and surface water and complies with policy NE1 in the TLDFCS, 
 paragraph 174(e) of the NPPF and policies WAT1 and MIN 1 in the emerging 
 NLP. 

Page 42



 
  
 
 Impact on Ground Stability 
 
9.65 Policy MIN1 in the emerging NLP includes a criterion that states that ‘applicants 
 should demonstrate that the operation and restoration of the site does not  create 
 land instability and the quarry slopes and storage mounds are designed so as 
 not to create instability’. The NPPF states that planning decisions should 
 prevent new and existing development from contributing to, being put at 
 unacceptable risk from, or being adversely affected by unacceptable levels of 
 land instability (paragraph 174e). The NPPF also state that planning decisions 
 should ensure that a site is suitable for its proposed use taking account of 
 ground conditions and any risks from land instability, including risks arising from 
 former mining activity (paragraph 183a). Where a site is affected by land 
 instability the NPPF states that responsibility for securing a safe development 
 rests with the developer and  / or landowner (paragraph 184). 
 
9.66 Prudham Quarry has numerous spoil heaps located between the application 
 site and nearby residential property. The vast majority of the spoil heaps are 
 vegetated with the roots of shrubs and trees helping to bind the spoil together 
 and reducing the risk of erosion and instability. 
 
9.67 The Hydrology and Hydrogeological Assessment submitted with the application 
 notes that there are large standoffs from the extraction area to the nearest 
 properties and that the spoil heaps have been stable since their formation. The 
 report concludes that the proposed quarrying operations would not destabilise 
 the spoil heaps. It explains that the Health and Safety Executive would be 
 responsible for managing quarry regulations that are aimed at protecting quarry 
 operatives and members of the public. The operator would be responsible for 
 preparing and keeping up to date a geotechnical assessment that would 
 identify and assess all factors liable to affect the stability and safety of the spoil 
 heaps.  
 
9.68 A number of the letters of objection from Warden Parish Council and local 
 residents raise concern over land instability, including reference to slippage 
 that occurred during extraction and following heavy rain in the 1970s. They refer 
 to the fact that some properties, including Woodlands, to the south of the former 
 quarry are located below extensive spoil heaps and express concern that the 
 opening up of the quarry could destabilise these heaps. They refer also to the 
 existence of a tunnel in the area behind Woodlands that dates from the 19th 
 century and is now covered by spoil. The concerns regarding stability are related 
 to concerns regarding groundwater flooding that are dealt with in the previous 
 section of this report. 
 
9.69 To assist in the assessment of ground stability the County Council commissioned 
 Wardell Armstrong to advise on the following issues: 
 (a) The stability of the land between the Blue Lagoon and the originally proposed 
 Phase 1 of the extraction area. 
 (b) The stability of land that would contain water from the proposed workings that 
 lies between Phase 2 of the proposed extraction area  and the area to the south. 
 (c) The stability of the spoil heaps above ‘Woodlands’ and other properties to 
 the south of the former quarry. 

Page 43



 
9.70 In relation to the land between the Blue Lagoon and Phase 1 of the extraction 
 area Wardell Armstrong found that the width of this area was less than was 
 shown on the originally submitted plans, confirming a concern raised by a local 
 resident. It would be possible therefore that any working of sandstone towards 
 the lagoon could potentially remove whatever barrier remains between these two 
 features. They therefore recommended that no working should be permitted in 
 an easterly direction in Phase 1 to retain a safe standoff to the Blue Lagoon. This 
 led to the applicants deleting this part of Phase 1 from the proposed extraction 
 area ensuring that the barrier between the Blue Lagoon and the extraction area 
 would  remain in situ. 
 
9.71 In relation to the stability of land between Phase 2 and the area to the south 
 which included the site of the originally proposed attenuation pond, Wardell 
 Armstrong concluded that the proposals would not result in any problems 
 because even ‘in the unlikely failure of the bund constructed to facilitate storage, 
 the water would still be fully contained within the excavation void. The worst 
 consequence of failure being that water will flow into the main quarry sump’. The 
 location of the proposed attenuation pond has subsequently been moved to be 
 adjacent to the southern end of the Phase 2 extraction area, to reflect advice 
 received from the Local Lead Flood Authority but this does not affect the 
 conclusions reached by Wardell Armstrong. 
 
9.72 In relation to the stability of the spoil heaps above ‘Woodlands’ and other 
 properties to the south, Wardell Armstrong found that ‘these heaps are likely to 
 have formed at their natural angle of repose, at close to 35 degrees to the 
 horizontal. The spoil heaps are now substantially tree covered, there is no sign of 
 instability in the form of tension crack development, slumping or water seepage, 
 which would be signs of potentially more substantial slope movement. All trees 
 are upstanding, with no signs of inclination, which would be another indication of 
 slope movement’. Wardell Armstrong considered that there was negligible direct 
 risk that the proposed workings would result in instability in this area. However, 
 Wardell Armstrong did consider that there was an indirect risk of land stability in 
 this area in the event of failure of the proposed  works, specifically the 
 embankment between the Blue Lagoon and the Phase 1 works as then proposed 
 (December 2020). As previously described in this report, the removal of 
 sandstone from the embankment in Phase 1 has been deleted from the working 
 proposals and the Environment Agency and Local Lead Flood Authority have 
 recommended conditions that seek to ensure that the risks to groundwater, 
 surface water and flooding off-site are not increased as a result of the proposed 
 development.  
 
9.73 It is relevant to note that the Committee report on the original planning  
 application concluded that the proposed development would not result in land 
 stability issues. Taking into account the additional investigations carried out by 
 Wardell Armstrong and the recommended planning conditions related to surface 
 water and ground water management and monitoring, it is concluded that the 
 proposed development is in accordance with the relevant provisions of the NPPF 
 and Policy Min1 in the emerging NLP.    
 
 Restoration of the Site 
 

Page 44



9.74 Policies R1, EP2 and SM1 of the NMLP and paragraph 211e of the NPPF 
 require applicants to submit proposals that make proper provision for the 
 restoration of the site to a suitable after-use. Policy MIN 3 in the emerging NLP 
 (as proposed for modification) requires provision to be made for appropriate 
 restoration and aftercare of mineral workings.  
 
9.75 The proposed restoration scheme for the site relies on natural regeneration 
 together with applying an appropriate local seed mix to encourage plant growth 
 if this is considered necessary. The quarry face would remain with the void 
 being regraded and reprofiled with the spoil resulting from the extraction of the 
 stone to tie in with surrounding land and covered with fines from the spoil. The 
 spoil heaps would be allowed to regenerate naturally and the compound areas 
 and access track would be regraded, seeded and left to regenerate naturally as 
 necessary.  
 
9.76 The County Ecologist notes that areas of the quarry where the conifers are 
 sparse or absent have a reasonably diverse ground flora including common 
 heather, devil’s-bit scabious, selfheal, mouse-ear hawkweed and common 
 knapweed. He considers that restoration should aim to create the conditions for 
 this grassland plant community to become established. Natural regeneration is 
 likely to be the most satisfactory method to achieve this, with quarry fines 
 providing a suitable substrate. This is the subject of a recommended planning 
 condition. 
 
9.77 An indicative restoration plan was not submitted with the previous application 
 and this was one of the reasons that the application was refused. A basic but 
 appropriate restoration plan has been submitted with the new application 
 showing the regrading and reprofiling of the land. This plan provides the basis for 
 the recommended planning condition relating to the restoration of the site which 
 requires a more detailed restoration and aftercare scheme to be submitted for 
 the approval of the Mineral Planning Authority not later than six months before 
 commencement of restoration operations.  The proposal therefore complies with 
 Policies R1, EP2 and SM1 of the  NMLP, paragraph 211e of the NPPF and 
 Policy MIN 3 of the emerging NLP. 
 
 Benefits of the Proposal 
 
9.78 As stated in paragraph 9.4 above the NPPF (paragraph 211) gives great weight 
 to the benefits of mineral extraction, including the economy. Policy MIN2 of the 
 emerging NLP also  states that great weight will be given to the benefits of 
 mineral extraction and lists various matters that will be considered in 
 assessing the benefits of individual proposals, including economic benefits, 
 employment and the contribution to maintaining supply both locally and 
 nationally. Other benefits listed in the policy are not relevant in the case of  this 
 application. 
 
9.79 It is considered that the economic and employment benefits in this case are 
 limited.  Two quarrymen would work on the site on an intermittent basis. In 
 addition there would be some employment for transport operatives and for 
 processing at the operator’s works in Haltwhistle. The contribution that the quarry 
 would make to maintain supply of sandstone both locally and nationally was 
 dealt with at paragraphs 9.9 to 9.13.  This contribution would involve a relatively 
 limited amount of sandstone to be worked over a limited period. Notwithstanding 

Page 45



 the fact that the benefits are limited in this case, they need to be given great 
 weight in the planning balance as stated in paragraph 211 of the NPPF.    
 
 Other Matters 
 
 Cumulative Impact 
 
9.80 Policy EP20 of the NMLP, Policy MIN1 of the emerging NLP and paragraph 
 205 of the NPPF advise that mineral proposals should take into account the 
 cumulative impact on local communities  and the environment. Cumulative 
 impact can comprise the combination of effects from an individual site, the 
 combination of effects from one or more sites in the locality and the effects over 
 an extended period of time either from an individual site or a combination of 
 sites in the locality. 
 
9.81 There are no other mineral workings in the vicinity of the application site. The 
 assessments of the various impacts of the proposed development and their 
 duration suggests that the combination of their effects would not be sufficient to 
 be in conflict with Policy EP20 of the NMLP, Policy MIN1 of the emerging NLP 
 and paragraph 205 of the NPPF. 
 
 Government Direction 
 
9.82 A direction requiring the Council to refer the application to the Secretary of State 
 before granting planning permission has been received.  
 
 Equality Duty 
  
9.83 The County Council has a duty to have regard to the impact of any proposal on 
 those people with characteristics protected by the Equality Act. Officers have 
 had due regard to Sec 149(1) (a) and (b) of the Equality Act 2010 and 
 considered the information provided by the applicant, together with the 
 responses from consultees and other parties, and determined that the proposal 
 would have no material impact on individuals or identifiable groups with 
 protected characteristics. Accordingly, no changes to the proposal were  
 required to make it acceptable in this regard. 
  
 Crime and Disorder Act Implications 
 
9.84 There have been incidents of anti-social behaviour in the woodland, 
 including trespass, littering and jumping from the top of the rock face into the 
 Blue Lagoon. These led to the landowner blocking the northern entry with 
 sandstone blocks, putting up signs stating that it is private land and erecting a 
 fence and warning signs above the Blue Lagoon. However, it is not considered 
 that the proposals that are the subject of this planning application have any  
 implications in relation to crime and disorder. 
 
 Human Rights Act Implications 
 
9.85 The Human Rights Act requires the County Council to take into account the 
 rights of the public under the European Convention on Human Rights and 
 prevents the Council from acting in a manner which is incompatible with those 
 rights. Article 8 of the Convention provides that there shall be respect for an 

Page 46



 individual's private life and home save for that interference which is in 
 accordance with the law and necessary in a democratic society in the interests 
 of (inter alia) public safety and the economic wellbeing of the country. Article 1 
 of protocol 1 provides that an individual's peaceful enjoyment of their property 
 shall not be interfered with save as is necessary in the public interest. 
 
9.86 For an interference with these rights to be justifiable the interference (and the 
 means employed) needs to be proportionate to the aims sought to be realised. 
 The main body of this report identifies the extent to which there is any 
 identifiable interference with these rights. The Planning Considerations 
 identified are also relevant in deciding whether any interference is 
 proportionate. Case law has been decided which indicates that certain 
 development does interfere with an individual's rights under Human Rights 
 legislation. This application has been considered in the light of statute and case 
 law and the interference is not considered to be disproportionate. 
 
9.87 Officers are also aware of Article 6, the focus of which (for the purpose of this 
 decision) is the determination of an individual's civil rights and obligations.  Article 
 6 provides that in the determination of these rights, an individual is  entitled to a 
 fair and public hearing within a reasonable time by an independent  and impartial 
 tribunal. Article 6 has been subject to a great deal of case law. It has been 
 decided that for planning matters the decision making process as a  whole, which 
 includes the right of review by the High Court, complied with  Article 6. 
 
10. Conclusion 
 
10.1 The application is a revised proposal for  the scheme that was refused planning 
 permission in 2019. Additional information on hydrology, restoration and 
 surface water management has been submitted that seeks to address the 
 reasons for refusal of the previous application, as well as updated survey 
 information on ecology and noise.  
 
10.2 The application, as amended, has been assessed against all relevant planning 
 policy  considerations, notably Development Plan policies, the NPPF and policies 
 in the emerging Northumberland Local Plan. Comments received from 
 consultees and in response to publicity have all been considered and taken into 
 account. The Environment Agency, Local Lead Flood Authority and Public 
 Protection Team objected to the previous application that was refused planning 
 permission. Each organisation submitted holding objections to the current 
 application with requests for further information to be submitted. Following the 
 submission of additional information and revised proposals, each organisation 
 has withdrawn its objections subject to the imposition of appropriate planning 
 conditions.    
 
10.3 For the reasons set out in this report it is considered that the proposal is 
 acceptable in principle and in terms of impact on the Green Belt, landscape 
 character, visual amenity, residential amenity, highways and public rights of 
 way, ecology, heritage assets, surface water and ground water, private water 
 supplies, ground stability and cumulative effects. The benefits of the scheme 
 mainly relate to the supply of sandstone with employment and other economic 
 benefits limited but needing to be weighed in the planning balance. The 
 proposed restoration scheme is considered to be acceptable with more detailed 

Page 47



 restoration and aftercare proposals being the subject of a recommended 
 planning condition. 
 
10.4 It is concluded therefore that the proposal is in accordance with the Development 
 Plan, the emerging Northumberland Local Plan and the NPPF and that the 
 overall planning balance weighs in favour of granting planning permission 
 subject to appropriate planning conditions and the satisfactory conclusion of a 
 Section 59 agreement for the repair of any damage to the highway resulting from 
 the quarry operation.  
 
10.5 Should the Committee be minded to grant planning permission, the  application 
 will need to be referred to the Secretary of State who has issued a holding 
 direction requiring the Mineral Planning Authority to refer the application to the 
 Secretary of State should it be minded to grant planning permission. Officers 
 have kept the Planning Casework Team informed of progress with consideration 
 of the application. 
 
11.  Recommendation 
 
11.1 That this application be GRANTED planning permission subject to: 
 

a) the Secretary of State. following referral of the application to them, confirming 
that they do not wish to call in the application for determination by themselves 

 
 b) the satisfactory conclusion of a Section 59 agreement for the repair of any 
 damage to the highway resulting from the quarry operation; and 
 
   c) the following conditions. 
 
 General 
 
1, The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 
 three years from the date of this permission. 
 
 Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
 (as amended) 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
 complete accordance with the approved plans and documents. The approved 
 plans and documents for this development are: 
 
 Plans 
 
 (a) Prudham Quarry Proposed Working and Drainage Scheme. 11 October 2021 
 (PO21-3 version 4) 
 (b) Prudham Quarry Existing Plan. July 2021 (SJB/P/03 Rev D) 
 (c) Prudham Quarry Proposed Development. July 2021 (SJB/P/04 Rev D) 
 (d) Prudham Quarry Restoration Scheme Site. Nov 2020 (SJP/P/09 Rev B) 
 (e) Prudham Quarry Location Plan. November 2020. (SJB/P/02 Rev C)  
 (f) Prudham Quarry Restoration Scheme Area. Nov 2020 (SJB/P/08 Rev C) 
 (g) Prudham Quarry Proposed D’ment: Sections. July 2021 (SJB/P/06 Rev E) 
 (h) Prudham Quarry Cross-Sections. 13 April 2021 (PQ 21-2) 
 (i) Prudham Quarry Existing Landscape Plan. November 2020 (SJB/P/10 Rev A) 

Page 48



 
 
 
 Documents 
 
 (j) Surface Water Management Scheme for Prudham Quarry. R&K Wood 
 Planning LLP. October 2021 
 (k) Addendum to Hydrological and Hydrogeological Assessment. 28 July 2021 
 (l) Proposed Extension to Prudham Quarry Hydrological and Hydrogeological 
 Assessment (including Appendices A – E). DAB Geotechnics Ltd. March 2020 
 (m) Prudham Quarry Preliminary Ecological Appraisal. J L Durkin. April 2019 
 (n) Examination of Environmental DNA in Pond water for the Detection of Great 
 Crested Newts. A Penny. 27 June 2016 
 (o) Prudhamstone Quarry Renewal of Quarrying Works Archaeological 
 Assessment and Impact Assessment (including Appendices 1 – 3). Alan Williams 
 Archaeology. April 2016 
 (q) Prudham Quarry Noise assessment. LA Environmental. March 2020 
 (r) Characteristics of the sandstone from Prudham Quarry (DAB/DAB/16004/07) 
 
 Letters 
 
 (s) Letter from DAB Geotechnics Ltd, 23 June 2020 
 (t) Letter from DAB Geotechnics Ltd, 10 August 2020 
 (u) Letter from DAB Geotechnics Ltd, 18 October 2020 
 
 Reason: To ensure that the approved development is carried out in complete 
 accordance with the approved plans. 
 
3. The Mineral Planning Authority shall be notified in writing of the dates of the 
 commencement of site operations, the first extraction of sandstone and the first 
 exportation of sandstone. 
 
 Reason: In the interests of the proper working of the site in accordance with 
 Policy  SA1 of the Northumberland Minerals Local Plan. 
 
4. The permission hereby granted is for a period expiring on 31 December 2028. 
 The extraction and exportation of minerals from the site shall cease no later than 
 31 December 2027 and the site shall be restored in full accordance with the 
 restoration plan approved under condition 2 and with the detailed programme for 
 the restoration of the site approved by Condition 27. 
 
 Reason: In the interests of the proper working and restoration of the site in 
 accordance with Policy SA1 of the Northumberland Minerals Local Plan 
 
5. The operator shall ensure that a notice board is erected and maintained at the 
 entrance to the site indicating the name, address and telephone number of a 
 representative of the operator who would be available to deal promptly with any 
 complaints.  
 
 Reason: In the interests of the proper working of the site in accordance with 
 Policy  SA1 of the Northumberland Minerals Local Plan. 
 

Page 49



6. Until the completion of restoration, a copy of this permission, all approved plans, 
 documents and details approved subsequently shall be displayed at the site in 
 such a location or locations that all relevant personnel may be aware of their 
 contents.  
 
 Reason: In the interests of the proper working of the site in accordance with 
 Policy  SA1 of the Northumberland Minerals Local Plan. 
 
7. No development shall be carried out until details of any fencing and gates and 
 the surfacing of the internal access tracks and compound area have been 
 submitted to and approved in writing by the Mineral Planning Authority. 
 
 Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the area in accordance with Policy 
 EP19 of the Minerals Local Plan. 
 
8. Notwithstanding the provisions of Part 17 of Schedule 2 of the Town and 
 Country Planning (General Permitted Development Order) 2015 (or any Order 
 amending, replacing or re-enacting that Order) no fixed plant or machinery shall 
 be erected on the site without the prior approval of the Mineral Planning Authority 
 and, similarly, details of the siting and design of all temporary buildings and 
 structures required in connection with the quarrying operations shall be 
 submitted to and agreed by the Mineral Planning Authority before they are 
 erected on site. 
 
 Reason: In the interests of the proper working of the site and the visual amenity 
 of the surrounding area in accordance with Policy SA1 of the Northumberland 
 Minerals Local Plan. 
 
9 The operator shall submit to the Mineral Planning Authority a formal report which 
 shall detail all mineral working and ancillary operations:  
 
 (a) undertaken at the site under the terms of this permission during the 
 immediately preceding 12 months; and  
 (b) proposed for the following 12 months.  
 
 Each report shall indicate by reference to a plan the areas within which the 
 following operations have taken place during the previous 12 months and are 
 proposed during the following 12 months:  
 
 (a) mineral extraction including the tonnage extracted and the principal markets;  
 (b) deposition of mineral waste arisings;   
 (c) surface water drainage works; and 
 (d) restoration works. 
 
 Reason: In the interests of the proper working of the site in accordance with 
 Policy SA1 of the Northumberland Minerals Local Plan. 
 
10. No mineral extraction shall be carried out and no plant shall be operated, except 
 for the purposes of site drainage or maintenance of plant or vehicles) except 
 between the following hours: 
 
 Monday – Friday (1 April – 30 September) 08.00 – 17.00 
 Monday – Friday (1 October – 31 March) 09.00 – 16.00 

Page 50



 
 There shall be no working on Saturdays, Sundays or Bank Holidays. 
 
 Reason: In the interests of residential amenity in accordance with Policy EP19 of 
 the Northumberland Minerals Local Plan. 
 
 Highways 
 
11. All loaded heavy goods vehicles leaving the site shall have their loads secured 
 by straps or ropes such that they shall not be displaced during transit. Where 
 small blocks (less than 1 cubic metre) are to be transported, they shall be 
 palletised, sealed by polythene shrink-wrapping, strapped and secured by 
 hauliers netting transit on flat bed vehicles.  
 
 Reason: In the interests of highway safety, in accordance with Policies EP18 and 
 EP19 of the Northumberland Minerals Local Plan and the National Planning 
 Policy Framework. 
 
12. The total number of heavy goods vehicle movements shall not exceed 6 
 movements in any direction on any day and a maximum of 130 movements 
 in any direction when measured as a maximum figure averaged over a rolling 3- 
 calendar month period. The operator shall keep a record of all movements of 
 heavy goods vehicles, including the time of entering or leaving the site, and shall 
 make the record available to the Mineral Planning Authority on request.  
 
 Reason: In the interests of highway safety, in accordance with Policies EP18 and 
 EP19 of the Northumberland Minerals Local Plan the National Planning Policy 
 Framework. 
 
13. There shall be no movements of heavy goods vehicles in any direction except 
 between the hours of 09.00 and 15.00. 
 
 Reason: In the interests of highway safety, in accordance with Policies EP18 and 
 EP19 of the Northumberland Minerals Local Plan and the National Planning 
 Policy Framework 
 
 Noise 
 
14. Noise from normal mineral operations at the site hall not exceed 42 dB (A) LAeq 
 (1 hour) free field at the boundary of any noise sensitive property. 
 
 Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the area and to provide a 
 commensurate level of protection against noise in accordance with Policy   EP19 
 of the Northumberland Minerals Local Plan. 
 
15. Temporary operations such as soils stripping or placement and drilling shall only 
 be undertaken for 8 weeks in any calendar year and shall not exceed a noise 
 level of 55 dB (A) LAeq (1 hour) free field at the boundary of any residential 
 property. 
 
 Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the area and to provide a 
 commensurate level of protection against noise in accordance with Policy   
 EP19 of the Northumberland Minerals Local Plan. 

Page 51



 
16. Within 21 days from the receipt of a written request from the Mineral Planning 
 Authority notifying the operator of a justified noise complaint, the operator shall 
 employ a competent independent acoustic consultant to assess the level of noise 
 emissions from the development at the complainant’s property. The assessment 
 shall be undertaken in accordance with the methodology agreed in writing with 
 the Mineral Planning Authority. The operator shall submit a report based on the 
 consultant’s findings to the Mineral Planning Authority for approval in writing. 
 Where noise levels from the development exceed the level stated in conditions 
 14 or 15 at the complainant’s property, appropriate mitigation measures shall be 
 agreed with the Mineral Planning Authority and implemented within a timescale 
 approved in writing by the Mineral Planning Authority. 
 
 Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the area and to provide a 
 commensurate level of protection against noise in accordance with Policy EP19 
 of the Northumberland Minerals Local Plan. 
 
 Dust 
 
17. Prior to the commencement of operations hereby permitted, a scheme for dust 
 management including measures for the control and reduction of dust emissions 
 associated with quarrying activities and a process for dealing with complaints of 
 dust adversely affecting residential properties shall be submitted to and 
 approved in writing by the Mineral Planning Authority. The approved scheme 
 shall then be implemented in full before mineral extraction commences and 
 maintained for the lifetime of the site.  
 
 Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the area in accordance with Policy 
 EP19 of the Northumberland Minerals Local Plan. 
 
 Blasting 
 
18. No extraction shall take place until a scheme of blasting has been submitted to 
 and approved in writing by the Mineral Planning Authority. Thereafter blasting 
 shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the approved scheme for the 
 lifetime of the development. 
 
 Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the area in accordance with Policy SA1 
 of the Northumberland Minerals Local Plan. 
 
 Water Management 
 
19. No extraction shall take place until the two surface water collection ponds as 
 shown on Drawing PQ21-3 Proposed Working and Drainage Scheme dated 11 
 October 2021, in the Surface Water Management Scheme for Prudham Quarry 
 dated October 2021, are lined with an impermeable liner. 
 
 Reason: To maintain baseline infiltration in terms of rates and spatial distribution; 
 to minimise the impact on groundwater flow paths and spring discharge rates 
 and to protect groundwater quality and in accordance with Policy EP21 of the 
 Northumberland Minerals Local Plan  
 
20. In carrying out the development the operator shall ensure that: 

Page 52



 
 (a) the base of excavation does not exceed an elevation 157 AOD as detailed in 
 paragraph 1.33 of the Surface Water Management Scheme for Prudham Quarry, 
 dated October 2021; 
 
 (b) any standing water is removed from site if the groundwater levels exceed 148 
 AOD in borehole 2 and 156.5 AOD in the waterbody know as “The Blue Lagoon”: 
 
 (c) the surface water ponds are desludged to maintain capacity for surface water 
 and attenuation of surface water run-off, baseline infiltration rates and to 
 protect surface water and groundwater quality; 
 
 (d) the monitoring and reporting of all water features on the site will be 
 maintained and mitigation throughout the restoration period will be reviewed, in 
 accordance with paragraphs 1.28, 1.29 and 1.35 of the Surface Water 
 Management Scheme for Prudham Quarry, dated October 2021; and 
 
 (e) a maintenance schedule and log, which shall include records of all 
 maintenance within the development, shall be undertaken for the lifetime of the 
 development and be made available on request to the Mineral Planning 
 Authority. 
 
 These mitigation measures shall be fully implemented in accordance with the 
 timing and phasing arrangements of the development. And shall be retained and 
 maintained thereafter throughout the lifetime of the development. 
 
 Reason:  To maintain a 1 metre unsaturated zone of rock above the highest 
 recorded groundwater level; to maintain baseline infiltration rates and special 
 distribution; and to ensure that the mitigation measures are reviewed in the light 
 of any changing circumstances (e.g. climate change), operate to their full 
 potential and are maintained during the lifetime of the development and in 
 accordance with Policy EP21 of the Northumberland Minerals Local Plan 
 
21. A report shall be submitted to the Mineral Planning Authority on an annual basis 
 detailing the results of groundwater monitoring and an assessment as to whether 
 the surface water management scheme has achieved its aims and been 
 effective. The first such report shall be submitted not later than 13 months after 
 the commencement of extraction. The reports shall include an assessment of: 
 
 (a) fluctuations in the water level of borehole 2; and 
 (b) fluctuations in the two surface water collection ponds as shown on Drawing 
 PQ21-3 Proposed Working and Drainage Scheme dated 11 October 2021, in 
 the Surface Water Management Scheme for Prudham Quarry dated October 
 2021. 
 
 Reason: To ensure the risk of flooding does not increase elsewhere as a result 
 of the development in accordance with Policy EP21 of the Northumberland 
 Minerals Local Plan and Policy GD5 of the Tynedale Local Development 
 Framework Core Strategy. 
 
22. Any changes to the agreed site water monitoring and management plan as set 
 out in the Surface Water Management Scheme for Prudham Quarry dated 
 October 2021 and shown on Drawing PQ21-3 Proposed Working and Drainage 

Page 53



 Scheme dated 11 October 2021, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
 the Mineral Planning Authority not later than one month prior to their 
 implementation, except where unacceptably high risks to groundwater require an 
 immediate response. 
 
 Reason: To ensure the effective disposal of surface water and that the risk of 
 flooding off-site is not increased in accordance with Policy EP21 of the 
 Northumberland Minerals Local Plan and Policy GD5 of the Tynedale Local 
 Development Framework Core Strategy. 
 
23. Within 21 days from receipt of a written request from the Mineral Planning 
 Authority notifying the operator of a justified complaint relating to quarrying 
 operations affecting the quality or quantity of water from a private supply of water 
 within 1 kilometre of the development site, the operator shall  employ a 
 competent independent hydrogeologist to assess the impact from the 
 development on that private supply of water. The request from the Mineral 
 Planning Authority will include details of the change in water quality or quantity 
 that is considered to justify the complaint. The operator shall submit a report 
 based on the consultant’s findings to the Mineral Planning Authority for approval 
 in writing. Where quarrying activities from the development are proven to be 
 affecting the quality or quantity of water from a private water supply, quarrying 
 operations will be suspended and appropriate mitigation measures shall be 
 agreed with the Mineral Planning Authority and implemented in full within a 
 timescale approved in writing by the Mineral Planning Authority, or an alternative 
 water supply will be provided to the affected properties. 
 
 Reason: To protect private water supplies to residential properties in accordance 
 with Policy EP21 of the Northumberland Minerals Local Plan. 
 
 Ecology 
 
24. No tree felling or vegetation clearance shall be undertaken between 1 March and 
 31 August unless a suitably qualified ecologist has first confirmed that no bird’s 
 nests that are being built or are in use, eggs or dependent young will be 
 damaged or destroyed. Netting of hedgerows or trees is only permitted in 
 exceptional circumstances in accordance with Chartered Institute of Ecology and 
 Environmental Management/Royal Society for the Protection of Birds advice. A 
 methodology and management plan for the installation and maintenance of the 
 netting will be agreed in writing with the Mineral Planning Authority prior to 
 installation.  
 
 Reason: To protect nesting birds, all species of which are protected by law in 
 accordance with Policies EP6 and EP7 of the Northumberland Minerals Local 
 Plan.  
 
25. Prior to the commencement of development, a method statement for the 
 safeguarding of Schedule 1 bird species shall be submitted to and approved by 
 the Mineral Planning Authority. The method statement shall be fully implemented 
 as approved.  
 
 Reason: To ensure that adverse impacts on a species fully protected by law are 
 avoided in accordance with Policies EP6 and EP7 of the Northumberland 
 Minerals Local Plan. 

Page 54



 
 Archaeology 
 
26. A programme of archaeological work is required in accordance with NCC 
 Conservation Team (NCCCT) brief (dated 4/5/2020). The archaeological scheme 
 shall comprise three stages of work. Each stage shall be completed and 
 approved in writing by the Mineral Planning Authority before it can be 
 discharged. 
  
 a) No development or archaeological mitigation shall commence on site until a 
 written scheme of investigation based on NCCCT Standards and Site Specific 
 Requirements documents has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
 Mineral Planning Authority.  
 
 b) The archaeological recording scheme required by NCCCT Standards and Site 
 Specific Requirements documents must be completed in accordance with the 
 approved written scheme of investigation.  
 
 c) The programme of analysis, reporting, publication and archiving if required by 
 NCCCT Standards and Site Specific Requirements documents must be 
 completed in accordance with the approved written scheme of investigation. 
 
 Reason The site is of archaeological interest and in accordance with Policy EP10 
 of the Northumberland Minerals Local Plan. 
 
 Restoration and Aftercare  
 
27. Not later than 6 months prior to the commencement of restoration and 
 notwithstanding the details set out on the restoration plan approved under 
 condition 2, a detailed restoration and aftercare scheme shall be submitted to 
 and approved in writing by the Mineral Planning Authority, including but not 
 restricted to:  
 
 (a) the areas to be restored and their final restoration contours; 
 
 (b) the spreading of overburden and fines across the working area of the quarry; 
  
 (c) a monitoring scheme to assess the progress of natural regeneration and to 
 identify any adverse indicators such as non-native invasive species;  
 
 (d) a remedial scheme to address any adverse indicators and to undertake 
 seeding in the event that natural regeneration proves insufficient;  
  
 (e) a control programme to eliminate existing stands of non-native invasive 
 species listed on Schedule 9 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 as 
 amended from the area of Fourstones and Park Shield Quarry Local Wildlife Site 
 within the same ownership and the planning application site; and 
  
 (f) details of surface water management, including monitoring, maintenance and 
 reporting, post-development. 
 

Page 55



 The restoration and aftercare scheme shall be fully implemented as approved 
 not later than 31 December 2028 or 12 months after the final exportation of 
 sandstone from the site, whichever is sooner. 
 
 Reason: To ensure that the restoration of the site is appropriate, conserves and 
 enhances important habitats in accordance with Policies EP6 and EP7 of the 
 Northumberland Minerals Local Plan and ensures the long-term surface water 
 regime does not increase the risk of flooding on-site or off-site in accordance 
 with Policy EP21 of the Northumberland Minerals Local Plan and Policy GD5 of 
 the Tynedale Local Development Framework Core Strategy. 
 
 Informatives 
 
1. A highway condition survey should be carried out before the commencement of 
 demolition and construction vehicle movements from this site. To arrange a 
 survey contact Highway Development Management at 
 Highwaysplanning@northumberland.gov.uk. 
 
2. Building materials or equipment shall not be stored on the highway unless 
 otherwise agreed. You are advised to contact the Streetworks team on 0345 600 
 6400 for Skips and Containers licences. 
 
3. If the operator intends to abstract more than 20 cubic metres of water per day 
 from a surface water source e.g. a stream or from underground strata (via 
 borehole or well) for any particular purpose, an abstraction licence will be 
 needed from the Environment Agency. 
 
4. The effectiveness of the development’s design in ensuring that a nuisance is not 
 created is the responsibility of the applicant / developer and their professional 
 advisors / consultants. Developers should therefore fully appreciate the 
 importance of obtaining competent professional advice. 
 
5. The granting of planning permission does not in any way indemnify against 
 statutory nuisance action being taken should substantiated complaints within the 
 remit of Part III of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 be received. 
 
6. A private water supply, as referred to in condition 22, is defined under Regulation 
 3 of The Private Water Supply (England) Regulations 2016 (as amended) as a 
 supply intended for human consumption.   
 
7. Public Footpath No. 6 passes the proposed site and should be protected 
 throughout the period of working. No action should be taken to disturb the path 
 surface without prior consent from the Highway Authority, obstruct the path or in 
 any way prevent or deter public use without the necessary temporary closure or 
 Diversion Order having been made, confirmed and an acceptable alternative 
 route provided. 
 
Date of Report: 22 November 2021 
 
Background Papers: Planning application file(s) 20/01107/CCM (current application) 
and 16/01458/CCM (previous application) 
  
 

Page 56



 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

Appeal Update Report 

Date: December 2021 

 

Planning Appeals 

Report of the Director of Planning 

Cabinet Member: Councillor CW Horncastle 

 

Purpose of report 

For Members’ information to report the progress of planning appeals.  This is a monthly 

report and relates to appeals throughout all 5 Local Area Council Planning Committee 

areas and covers appeals of Strategic Planning Committee.     

Recommendations 

To note the contents of the report in respect of the progress of planning appeals that have 

been submitted to and determined by the Planning Inspectorate. 

Link to Corporate Plan  

This report is relevant to all of the priorities included in the NCC Corporate Plan 2018-2021 

where identified within individual planning applications and appeals. 

Key issues  

Each planning application and associated appeal has its own particular set of individual 

issues and considerations that have been taken into account in their determination, which 

are set out within the individual application reports and appeal decisions. 

Page 59

Agenda Item 7



 

Recent Planning Appeal Decisions 

Planning Appeals Allowed (permission granted) 

Reference No Proposal and main planning considerations Award of 
costs? 

19/00247/FUL Construction of a publicly accessible landmark, 

commissioned to commemorate Queen Elizabeth II 

and the Commonwealth - land at Cold Law, 

Kirkwhelpington 

Main issues: development in the open countryside 

which fails to recognise the intrinsic character and 

nature of the countryside. 

Committee Decision – Officer Recommendation: 

Approve 

No 

Planning Appeals Split Decision 

Reference No Proposal and main planning considerations Award of 
costs? 

None   

Planning Appeals Dismissed (permission refused) 

Reference No Proposal and main planning considerations Award of 
costs? 

21/00543/ADE Display of 1no. 'Development Opportunity For Sale' 
board for 6 months (Retrospective) - land north of 
Shaw House Farm, Newton 

Main issues: the signage would cause harm to public 
and highway safety. 

Delegated Decision - Officer Recommendation: 

Refuse 

No 

21/00834/FUL Stone clad side extension with pitched roof to form 
new open plan kitchen, dining and master with part 
mezzanine above kitchen – The Gin Gan, Whalton 

Main issues: poor design that would have a 
significant detrimental impact on the character of the 
property and inappropriate development in the Green 
Belt. 

No 

Page 60



 

Appeal against non-determination 

20/00925/OUT Outline permission for the construction of up to 9no 
dwellings including access, appearance, layout and 
scale – land north-west of Blue House Farm, Blue 
House Farm Road, Netherton Colliery 

Main issues: harm to setting of a designated heritage 
asset; insufficient information in respect of potential 
risk from ground gas; and a section 106 agreement 
has not been completed in respect of a contribution 
to the ecology coastal mitigation scheme or off-site 
sport and play provision. 

Delegated Decision - Officer Recommendation: 

Refuse 

No – 

claim 

refused 

21/00496/FUL Construction of a bungalow – land east of 
Dukewilley, Lowgate 

Main issues: inappropriate development in the Green 
Belt; unsustainable development in open 
countryside; unacceptable impacts on residential 
amenity; and no Section 106 agreement has been 
competed in relation to sport and play provision. 

Delegated Decision - Officer Recommendation: 

Refuse 

No 

20/03451/FUL Erection of five camping pods and associated 
clubhouse – land south-west of Catton Pumping 
Station, Catton 

Main issues: isolated from and not well related to 
existing development as well as being visually 
intrusive in the countryside; detrimental impact on 
residential amenity; adverse impact on the North 
Pennines AONB; and inadequate information 
regarding ecology of the site and surrounding area 
and inadequate mitigation. 

Delegated Decision - Officer Recommendation: 

Refuse 

No 

 

Planning Casework Unit Referrals 

Reference No Proposal and main planning considerations Award of 
costs? 

None   

Page 61



 

Planning Appeals Received 

Appeals Received 

Reference No Description and address Appeal start date 
and decision 
level 

20/03861/VARYCO Variation of condition 2 (approved plans) 
pursuant to planning permission 
20/00297/FUL in order to allow new wall to 
be moved closer to boundary wall to 
underpin and give support. Also French 
doors have 3/4 height windows on either side 
and single window in extension will be 
replaced using existing 2no. sash windows 
and mullions – Ashleigh, 26 Cade Hill Road, 
Stocksfield 

Main issues: extension would be out of scale 
and character with the existing property and 
would have a harmful impact on the 
character and appearance of the site and 
surrounding area; and detrimental impact 
upon the residential amenity of the 
neighbouring property. 

26 May 2021 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

 

21/01205/AGTRES Prior notification for change of use of an 
existing agricultural building and conversion 
to 1no. Dwelling - land to east of Edgewell 
House Farm House, Edgewell House Road, 
Prudhoe 

Main issues: insufficient information to 
establish if the proposal complies with 
relevant requirements regarding the last use 
of the building. 

16 July 2021 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

 

19/04660/FUL New external plant – Asda, Main Street, 
Tweedmouth 

Main issues: insufficient information in 
relation to noise and potential impacts on 
residential amenity. 

19 August 2021 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

21/00128/FUL Change of use from public house at ground 
floor (Sui Generis) to 1no. self contained two 
bedroom apartment at ground floor (C3 Use). 
Retention of existing 7no. existing holiday let 
rooms at first floor (C1 use); 1no. existing 
self contained apartment at first floor (C3 
Use); and 1no. existing self contained 
apartment at second floor (C3 use) 
(Amended description 06/04/2021). 

Main issues: proposal is unable to provide 

20 August 2021 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

Page 62



 

sufficient on-site car parking with 
unacceptable adverse impact on highway 
safety; and no completed Section 106 
Agreement to secure sport and play 
contributions. 

21/00844/FUL Adjustment to front boundary, replace lawn 
with permeable surface to allow parking for 2 
cars, addition of electric vehicle charging 
point, remove pedestrian access, create 
central 10 foot wide vehicle/pedestrian 
access, installation of wrought iron gates and 
dropped kerbs to highway - 51 
Ravensdowne, Berwick-upon-Tweed 

Main issues: the proposal would result in less 
than substantial harm to the Conservation 
Area and listed buildings and there are no 
public benefits to outweigh the harm. 

25 August 2021 

Appeal against 

non-determination 

 

21/00845/LBC Listed Building Consent for adjustment to 
front boundary, replace lawn with permeable 
surface to allow parking for 2 cars, addition 
of electric vehicle charging point, remove 
pedestrian access, create central 10 foot 
wide vehicle/pedestrian access, installation 
of wrought iron gates and dropped kerbs to 
highway - 51 Ravensdowne, Berwick-upon-
Tweed 

Main issues: the proposal would result in less 
than substantial harm to the Conservation 
Area and listed buildings and there are no 
public benefits to outweigh the harm. 

25 August 2021 

Appeal against 

non-determination 

20/02536/FUL Retrospective - Installation of hard standing, 
electricity and water points, alterations to 
access and other ancillary works - land west 
of North Farm Cottages, Embleton 

Main issues: incursion into the open 
countryside and would erode the rural 
character of the site and its surroundings. 

26 August 2021 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

20/03231/OUT Erection of 4no. dwellinghouses (C3 use 
class) with all matters reserved – land north-
west and south-east of The Haven, Back 
Crofts, Rothbury 

Main issues: fails to address highway safety 
matters in relation to site access and 
manoeuvrability.  

10 September 

2021 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

20/03542/FUL Change of use of land to site shepherd’s hut 
for tourism accommodation – land east of 
Kingshaw Green, Tyne Green, Hexham 

Main issues: inappropriate development in 
the Green Belt; inadequate flood risk 

13 September 

2021 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Page 63



 

assessment; and insufficient information 
regarding foul water treatment. 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

19/01008/FUL Construction of 58no. dwellings with 
associated landscaping, access and 
infrastructure works – land to north of 
Fairmoor Centre, Morpeth 

Main issues: unacceptable in principle as the 
site is allocated in the development plan for 
employment use and it is considered that the 
site should be retained for such purposes; 
outstanding technical matters also remain to 
be resolved regarding surface water 
drainage and highways matters; and Section 
106 contributions in respect of education, 
primary healthcare and affordable housing 
have not been secured. 

16 September 

2021 

Appeal against 

non-determination 

21/01393/FUL Single-storey flat-roofed garage to rear of 
back garden – 7 First Avenue, Blyth 

Main issues: design, scale and massing 
would result in an incongruous addition with 
a negative visual impact on the property and 
surrounding area. 

30 September 

2021 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

21/01085/FUL Single storey front extension – 2 The Limes, 
Morpeth 

Main issues: the proposals would result in an 
incongruous and overbearing addition with 
visual harm to the property and wider street 
scene. 

12 October 2021 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

20/04369/FUL Reserved Matters application in accordance 
with condition 1, 2 and 5 - seeking approval 
of layout, scale, appearance and 
landscaping, including details of 
materials/finishes (residential development of 
up to 6 dwellings) pursuant to planning 
permission 13/00802/OUT - land north of 
High Fair, Wooler 

Main issues: layout, scale and massing 
would be out of character with surrounding 
area. 

18 October 2021 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

21/01578/OUT Outline permission with all matters reserved - 
demolition of existing garage, stable block 
and tennis court and erection of 1 dwelling 
with associated driveway and landscaping 
(Self Build) - land west of Roecliffe, 
Ladycutter Lane, Corbridge 

Main issues: inappropriate development in 
the Green Belt; and encroachment into the 

19 October 2021 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

Page 64



 

countryside and would not respond to the 
character of the area. 

20/04343/LBC Listed building consent for metal railings to 
balcony – 8 Prospect Place, Alnmouth 

Main issues: less than substantial harm 
caused to the listed building. 

19 October 2021 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

20/01918/FUL Demolition of modern agricultural sheds and 
development of six new residential dwellings, 
including gardens, car parking, and all 
ancillary works – Longbank Farm, 
Longhoughton 

Main issues: principle of housing in an 
isolated location in the open countryside is 
unacceptable; significant urbanising effects 
in the open countryside eroding the local 
landscape and not enhancing the 
Northumberland Coast AONB; insufficient 
information to assess off-site highway works; 
and no Section 106 Agreement completed to 
secure affordable housing. 

26 October 2021 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

20/01600/FUL Development of 9no. affordable houses, 
including access road, gardens, car parking 
and other ancillary works - land north of 
B6350, Corbridge 

Main issues: inappropriate development in 
the Green Belt; development in an 
unsustainable location in the open 
countryside; results in encroachment into the 
countryside, loss of mature trees and visually 
intrusive and harmful impact on rural and 
open character of the site and setting of 
Corbridge; and loss of Grade 2 agricultural 
land. 

27 October 2021 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

21/03224/FUL Change of use of private dwelling into 4no. 
holiday lets and separate holiday home to 
rent and erection of 4no. holiday homes to 
rent with associated car parking – Bayview, 
Beachway, Blyth 

Main issues: inadequate off-road car parking 
provision and resultant off-site impacts; 
increased noise and light pollution to the 
shoreline of the Northumberland Shore SSSI 
and harmful to bird species in that area; 
inadequate provision to mitigate the impact 
of increased recreational disturbance to 
designated sites of ecological importance; 
insufficient information to demonstrate that 
the proposals are acceptable in terms of 

27 October 2021 

Appeal against 

non-determination 

Page 65



 

coastal erosion vulnerability and surface 
water drainage; and insufficient information 
to demonstrate the proposals are acceptable 
in terms of impacts on the World War II pill 
box and setting of Blyth Battery. 

21/03224/FUL Former Veterinary Clinic Converted to 4 x 
Residential Apartments – 37-39 Croft Road, 
Blyth 

Main issues: harmful impact on residential 
amenity; fails to address highway safety 
matters in relation to parking provision; and 
lack of completed planning obligation in 
respect of a contribution to the Coastal 
Mitigation Service. 

27 October 2021 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

 

20/03777/FUL Change of use to dwelling with single storey 
extension and internal/external alterations – 
The Water House, Redesmouth, Hexham 

Main issues: no completed Section 106 
Agreement to secure planning obligation of 
financial contribution for sport and play 
provision. 

28 October 2021 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

20/02282/LBC Listed building consent for replacement of all 
single glazed windows with double glazed 
units matching the current design – West 
House, Chillingham Castle, Chillingham 

Main issues: insufficient information to 
demonstrate that the proposed works are 
necessary or justified and the existing 
windows are beyond reasonable repair. 

2 November 2021 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

 

21/00667/FUL Conversion of agricultural buildings into 4no. 
residential units – High Baulk Farm, Great 
Whittington 

Main issues: retention and alteration of 
modern hay barn as part of conversion works 
is unacceptable in principle; and harmful 
design that would not be in keeping with the 
curtilage listed buildings. 

2 November 2021 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

21/01660/FUL Proposed erection of perimeter fencing and 
gates – site of former The Bungalow, High 
Pit Road, Cramlington 

Main issues: by virtue of siting, height and 
design the proposal constitutes an 
incongruous feature that fails to respect or 
enhance the character of the area. 

3 November 2021 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

21/02878/FUL Change of use of land for siting of 
shepherd’s huts and associated development 
– land north of White House Farm, Slaley 

Main issues: inappropriate development in 

4 November 2021 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Page 66



 

the Green Belt. Recommendation: 

Refuse 

21/03062/FUL Proposed alterations and rear extension to 
dwelling house (retrospective) - 23 
Shoresdean, Berwick-upon-Tweed 

Main issues: poor quality flat roof design with 
detrimental impact on the property and the 
character of the environment. 

10 November 

2021 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

Recent Enforcement Appeal Decisions 

Enforcement Appeals Allowed 

Reference No Description and address Award of 
costs? 

None   

 

Enforcement Appeals Dismissed 

Reference No Description and address Award of 
costs? 

None   

Enforcement Appeals Received 

Appeals Received 

Reference No Description and address Appeal start date  

18/00223/ENDEVT Land to the West of Buildings Farm, 

Whittonstall, Consett, DH8 9SB 

Main issues: material change of use of the 

land from agricultural for the siting of 4 

caravans 

1 February 2021 

18/00223/ENDEVT Land to the West of Buildings Farm, 

Whittonstall, Consett, DH8 9SB 

1 February 2021 

Page 67



 

Main issues: material change of use of the 

land for the siting of one caravan and the 

erection of fencing in excess of 2 metres in 

height 

Inquiry and Hearing Dates 

Reference No Description and address Inquiry/hearing 
date and 
decision level 

20/02247/FUL Erection of a rural worker’s dwelling – land 

south of Middle Coldcoats Equestrian Centre, 

Milbourne 

Main issues: fails to demonstrate the need 

for a rural worker’s dwelling in the open 

countryside; inappropriate development in 

the Green Belt and there are no very special 

circumstances to outweigh harm; and fails to 

address pollution concerns with potential to 

affect protected species and failure to 

demonstrate ecological enhancement. 

Virtual hearing 

date: 28 July 2021 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

 

20/02488/FUL Siting of upcycled shipping containers to 

provide retail and leisure facilities (use class 

A1, A3, and A4) and tented permanent roof 

covering as supplemented by note from 

agent received 07/09/20, additional details 

received 23/09/20, acoustic report received 

25/09/20, and supplementary information 

received 20/10/20 - JH Laidler Storage Yard, 

Double Row, Seaton Delaval 

Main issues: loss of employment land; not 

demonstrated that the proposal satisfies the 

sequential test for main town centre uses in 

an out of centre location; and lack of 

information to be able to assess impacts on 

highway safety. 

Hearing date: 27 

September 2021 

Delegated 

Decision - Officer 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

20/01932/FUL Construction of single dwelling with annex 

and ancillary accommodation, c.6.5 metre 

high wind turbine, associated landscaping 

and highway works (amended description) - 

Hearing date: 18 

January 2022 

Committee 

Decision - Officer 

Page 68



 

land south of Church Lane, Riding Mill 

Main issues: isolated dwelling in the open 

countryside; inappropriate development in 

the Green Belt; insufficient information to fully 

assess ecological impacts; harmful impacts 

on the character of the site, wider area and 

countryside; lack of completed Section 106 

Agreement to secure planning obligations for 

contributions to sport and play provision; and 

insufficient information to assess noise from 

wind turbine and impacts in residents and 

local area. 

Recommendation: 

Refuse 

 

 

Page 69



 

 

Implications 

Policy Decisions on appeals may affect future 
interpretation of policy and influence policy reviews 

Finance and value for money There may be financial implications where costs are 
awarded by an Inspector or where Public Inquiries 
are arranged to determine appeals 

Legal It is expected that Legal Services will be instructed 
where Public Inquiries are arranged to determine 
appeals 

Procurement None 

Human resources None 

Property None 

Equalities 

(Impact Assessment attached?)  

❏ Yes 

✓ No 

❏ N/a  
 

Planning applications and appeals are considered 
having regard to the Equality Act 2010 

Risk assessment None 

Crime and disorder 
As set out in individual reports and decisions 

Customer consideration None 

Carbon reduction Each application/appeal may have an impact on the 
local environment and have been assessed 
accordingly 

Wards All where relevant to application site relating to the 
appeal 

Background papers 

Planning applications and appeal decisions as identified within the report. 

Report author and contact details 

Elizabeth Sinnamon 
Development Service Manager 
01670 625542 
Elizabeth.Sinnamon@northumberland.gov.uk 

Page 70


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS
	3 PROCEDURE AT PLANNING COMMITTEES
	5 DETERMINATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS
	6 20/01107/CCM
	7 APPEALS UPDATE

